
Canal Winchester

Town Hall
10 North High Street

Canal Winchester, OH 43110

Meeting Agenda
October 7, 2019

7:00 PM

City Council
Bruce Jarvis – President

Mike Walker – Vice President
Jill Amos

Will Bennett
Bob Clark

Mike Coolman
Patrick Lynch 



City Council Meeting Agenda October 7, 2019

~ 2 ~

A. Call To Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance ‐ Bennett

C. Roll Call

D. Approval of Minutes

MIN‐19‐042 9‐16‐19 Work Session Minutes (minutes)

MIN‐19‐043 9‐16‐19 Council Minutes (minutes)

MIN‐19‐044 9‐30‐19 Committee of the Whole Minutes (minutes)

MIN‐19‐045 9‐30‐19 Public Meeting Minutes (minutes)

E. Communications & Petitions

19‐094 Introduction of Madison Township Fire Chief (Madison Township Fire 
Report)

19‐095  Goodwill Workforce Development (letter)

F. Public Comments ‐ Five Minute Limit Per Person

G. RESOLUTIONS

A Resolution Endorsing The Passage Of The 2019 Franklin County Children 
Services 3.1 Mill Renewal Levy Issue 10 (resolution)

‐ Adoption

RES‐19‐023
Mayor

A Resolution To Establish the Route 33 North Community Reinvestment 
Area And To Authorize Real Property Tax Exemptions Established By 
Sections 3735.65 Through 2723.70 Of The Ohio Revised Code (resolution)

‐ Adoption

RES‐19‐024
Development

A Resolution In Support Of Stormwater Awareness Week (resolution)

‐ Adoption

RES‐19‐025
Public Service

H. ORDINANCES

Tabled

An Ordinance To Amend Section 331.44 Of The Codified Ordinances Of 
The City Of Canal Winchester (Ordinance)

‐ Tabled

ORD‐19‐053
Law

Third Reading 

Second Reading 



City Council Meeting Agenda October 7, 2019

~ 3 ~

An Ordinance To Authorize The Mayor And Finance Director To Enter Into 
Contracts With The Director Of Transportation For The Improvements Of 
State Route 674 (Ordinance)

‐ Second Reading Only

ORD‐19‐054
Public Service
Sponsor: Coolman

First Reading 

An Ordinance To Accept The Application of Teresa L. McCormick For The 
Annexation To The City Of Canal Winchester Of Certain Territory In 
Madison Township Containing 0.75+/‐ Acres And Being Located At 6055 
Bixby Road, To Amend The Zoning Map To Zone 0.75+/‐ Acreas To Limited 
Manufacturing (LM), And Declaring An Emergency (Ordinance, Exhibit)

‐ Request waiver of second and/or third reading and adoption

ORD‐19‐055
Development

An Ordinance To Accept The Application Of Michael L. And Cassandra J. 
Sullivan For The Annexation To The City Of Canal Winchester Of Certain 
Territory In Madison Township Containing 0.62+/‐ Acres And Being 
Located at 6229 Bixby Road, To Amend The Zoning Map To Zone 0.62+/‐ 
Acres To Limited Manufacturing (LM), And Declaring An Emergency 
(Ordinance, Exhibit)

‐ Request waiver of second and/or third reading and adoption

ORD‐19‐056
Development

An Ordinance To Accept The Application Of Dean Jenkins For The 
Annexation To The City Of Canal Winchester Of Certain Territory In 
Madison Township Containing 1.26+/‐ Acres and Being Located at 6091 
Bixby Road, To Amend The Zoning Map To Zone 1.26+/‐ Acres To Limited 
Manufacturing (LM), And Declaring An Emergency (Ordinance, Exhibit)

‐ Request waiver of second and/or third reading and adoption

ORD‐19‐057
Development

An Ordinance To Appropriate A Fee Simple Absolute Interest In 2.291 
Acres, More Or Less, Located At West Waterloo Street, For The Public 
Purpose Of Constructing Roadway Improvements, And Declaring An 
Emergency (Ordinance, Exhibit A, Exhibit B)

‐ Request waiver of second and/or third reading and adoption

ORD‐19‐058
Development

An Ordinance To Waive Competitive Bidding For Park Amenities Portion Of 
The Westchester Park Improvements Project And To Authorize The Mayor 
And Finance Director To Enter Into A Contract With Landscape Structures, 
Inc. And Declaring An Emergency (ordinance, Exhibit A, Exhibit B)

‐ Request waiver of second and/or third reading and adoption

ORD‐19‐059
Public Service

I. Reports

Mayor's Report
19‐091  Report



City Council Meeting Agenda October 7, 2019

~ 4 ~

Fairfield County Sheriff

Law Director

Finance Director

Public Service Director
19‐092  Project Update

Development Director
19‐093  Report

J. Council Reports

Informal Town Hall Special Meeting ‐ Tuesday, October 8, 2019 at 7:00 pm

Work Session/Council ‐ Monday, October 21, 2019 at 6 p.m.

Work Session/Council ‐ Monday, November 4, 2019 at 6 p.m.

CW Human Services ‐ Mr. Lynch

CWICC ‐ Mr. Clark

CWJRD ‐ Mr. Bennett/Mrs. Amos

Destination: Canal Winchester ‐ Mr. Walker

K. Old/New Business

L. Adjourn to Executive Session (if necessary)

M. Adjournment



Canal Winchester

Town Hall
10 North High Street

Canal Winchester, OH 43110

Meeting Minutes - Draft
September 16, 2019

6:00 PM

Council Work Session
Mike Walker – Chair

Jill Amos
Will Bennett

Bob Clark
Mike Coolman

Bruce Jarvis
Patrick Lynch 



Council Work Session                                                  Meeting Agenda                                          September 16, 2019

~ 2 ~

A. Call To Order Call to order at 6:00 pm
  

B.

Roll Call 

Present 6-Amos, Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Lynch, Walker
Absent 1-Bennett
Motion to excuse Bennett made by Amos; seconded by Lynch
Motion carried with the following vote: 
Yes 6-Amos, Lynch, Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Walker

  

C. Also In Attendance 
  

 
Mayor Ebert, Matt Peoples, Lucas Haire, Bill Sims, Dick Miller, Steve Smith, Rick Brown, Sargent Cassel, 
Shane Spencer

D. Reports 
  

 

Bill Sims - Mr. Sims stated the original contract street program work is being finalized for the Westchester 
Park parking lot improvements; High Street railroad crossing project is moving forward; Westchester Park 
improvements plans are moving forward; Gender Road phase five project; Crossroads Church public 
roadway project; Canal Cove section six and seven; Winchester Ridge apartments phase four sanitary 
work; Nifco project on Robinette utilities; Hampton Inn work continuing; Turning Stone project Conrad 
Road; park at Carriage Place; pre-construction meeting for mixed use site at West 16-28 Waterloo Street; 
right-of-way permits issued.  Lynch asked about Turning Stone project; Mr. Sims responded regarding the 
building timing. Mr. Haire responded about issuing permit for model home and home lots and building will 
commence in spring; Ryan Homes is the builder. 

 

Dick Miller - Mr. Miller spoke about trees to be installed, pruning along Groveport bike path, work to be 
done at old Marathon site on Waterloo next to the town hall; state of Ohio Division of Forestry will remove 
sixteen street tree stumps around the city; field adjustments to trees along Route 33; will review progress 
of Winchester Ridge phase three apartments; will remove and store hanging baskets and street planters 
which residents notice the change in seasons; better living through chemistry with the flowers. Amos 
commented about the flowers.  Amos asked about the Turning Stone project; Mr. Miller responded.  
Coolman asked about ramp area around Route 33 and Diley Road as to who maintains these areas; Mr. 
Miller responded that Violet Township mows the grass east side of Diley Road; what about the swamp 
area around cloverleaf; Mr. Peoples responded; dead grass that was treated and invasive pear trees; used 
dormant base spray; some areas around 33 ramps trying to achieve a savannah look.

 

Steve Smith - Mr. Smith stated there will be a dig on Groveport Road east of Gender Road section of pipe 
damaged; diffuser change to happen; he asked for questions…no questions

 
Rick Brown - Mr. Brown stated he installed Microsoft updates on all workstations; updated all servers; set 
up a new employee; replaced some UPSs; worked on cooling equipment; took down some speakers at the 



Council Work Session Meeting Agenda September 16, 2019

~ 3 ~

pool; repaired a camera; attended an audio and visual show in Columbus; working on finalizing fiber 
contracts; August recorded over 10,000 attacks on our network; data centers in different countries; issue 
of receiving mail from Brew Dog.  Walker asked question about a barracuda device; Mr. Brown 
responded; another question regarding cell service outage or overworked cell service when Brew Dog has 
a large event and affecting the ability of people needing to call 911 and cannot get through; Mr. Brown 
responded about the 4G network and moving to 5G and what will be on the Gender towers; have to be 
closer together to increase cell speed.

Sargent Cassel - Sgt. Cassel stated he has statistics from August 2019 from first, second and third shifts. 
Amos asked what are the hours of each shift; Sgt. Cassel replied first shift is 0700 to 1500, second shift is 
1500 to 2300 and third shift is 2300 to 0700.  

Shane Spencer - . Mr. Spencer stated an update from ODOT on Gender Road traffic signal; they have a 
consultant to do a traffic count; assisting with High Street railroad crossing; received information from 
MORPC for city’s though fare plan; application for Gender Road phase five funding; concept of Gender 
Road phase six, met with ODOT regarding dedicated right turn lane and pedestrian connection at Route 
33; ODOT has authority of these part of improvement; improve pedestrian access; any issues with Route 
33 bridge, possible ODOT safety funds for improvements; 2020 street maintenance projects being 
discussed with Mr. Sims.  Clark asked about any ODOT issues with Route 33 bridge; Mr. Spencer replied it 
is being discussed about the current design and re-purposing the bridge space.  Clark asked regarding a 
tract system; Mr. Spencer replied about deadlines for requesting funds in April. 

E. Request for Council Action

A Resolution Of Intent To Appropriate A Fee Simple Absolute Interest In 
2.391 Acres, More Or Less, Located At West Waterloo Street, For The Public 
Purpose Of Constructing Roadway Improvements, Which Shall Be Open To 
The Public Without Charge, And Declaring An Emergency (Resolution, 
Attachment)

- Request to move to full Council

RES-19-021
Development

Mr. Haire spoke regarding the city gaining control of easement on High Street working with the estate of 
Bob Woods and property; resolution to address this easement issue and gain title to this area of the 
property.  Jarvis asked what is a fee simple absolute interest; Mr. Hollins replied it is a basic form of 
ownership of property. Mr. Hollins stated in the past, these side of roadway areas were owned by the 
farmer, but did not necessarily transfer in a sale of property because it is covered by the roadway. 
Discussion ensued regarding the appraiser for this project.

Motion was made by Coolman to adopt RES-19-021, seconded by Lynch
Motion carried with the following vote:
Yes 6-Coolman, Lynch, Amos, Clark, Jarvis, Walker

RES-19-022
Finance

A Resolution Accepting The Amounts And Rates Determined By The Budget 
Commission And Authorizing The Necessary Tax Levies And Certifying Them 
To The County Auditor (Resolution)



Council Work Session Meeting Agenda September 16, 2019

~ 4 ~

- Request to move to full Council

Mr. Peoples, however he declined to comment on this issue, deferring to Mr. Hollins for a statement 
regarding finance. Mr. Hollins spoke regarding the millage and the taxing district.

Motion was made by Clark to adopt RES-19-022, seconded by Amos
Motion carried with the following vote:
Yes 6-Clark, Amos, Coolman, Jarvis, Lynch, Walker

An Ordinance Authorizing The Appropriation Of Property For The Public 
Purpose Of Constructing Roadway Improvements, Which Such Roadway 
Shall Be Open To The Public Without Charge, And Declaring An Emergency 
(Ordinance, Exhibit A, Exhibit B)

- Request to move to full Council

ORD-19-052
Development

Mr. Peoples, however he declined to comment on this issue, deferring to Mr. Hollins for a statement 
regarding finance. Mr. Hollins spoke regarding the millage and the taxing district.

Motion was made by Lynch to adopt ORD-19-052, seconded by Coolman
Motion carried with the following vote:
Yes 6 – Lynch, Coolman, Amos, Clark, Jarvis, Walker

An Ordinance To Amend Section 331.44 Of The Codified Ordinances Of The 
City of Canal Winchester (Ordinance)

- Request to move to full Council

ORD-19-053
Law

Mr. Hollins stated this is the re-written texting while driving ordinance. The penalty section is taken from 
state law; commented regarding the juvenile section and for second reading it will be corrected to reflect 
state law. This tracts the under 18 hands free operation of any device while driving the vehicle; it is 
following the state law for drivers age 16-18.  Jarvis commented that this will affect everybody who is 
driving, and if we had scheduled a public meeting to hear their concerns and we should have some press 
coverage to incorporate public opinion in our decision on this issue. Clark stated Governor DeWine has 
presented this issue to the Ohio General Assembly for consideration to make illegal to hold device while 
driving; legislation in committee now; feels that is the appropriate place to enact this type of law; unless 
the state does not act in a timely manner; not common in communities; issue of people driving through 
town and not knowing it is our city law. Amos stated we spent a lot of time working on this issue; she 
personally would like to see us enact it now and amend with state law; Jarvis stated contact local press to 
write feature on this topic and then hold a meeting. Coolman asked if there should be clause in law to 
protect city employees who are using hand held device while at work. Mr. Hollins said the city employees 
are not exempted right now, but clause for emergencies. Mr. Peoples state city employees do use radios 
while running snow plows, it is something that can be looked at.  Question of what is an emergency vehicle 
and emergency purpose; flashing lights on vehicles; possible wording to exempt city employees in a city 
vehicle. Coolman commented about state law between minors and others, plus exceptions that apply to 
adults; a public vehicle exception. Mr. Hollins stated the state law does not include many exceptions for 
16-18 year olds; we went with a hands free approach; can now look at other exceptions that apply to
adults. Jarvis state want to come up with a time line for this, would be more comfortable to have a public
meeting before moving forward; possibly in two weeks and then do first reading. Can do public meeting



Council Work Session                                                  Meeting Agenda                                          September 16, 2019

~ 5 ~

before Committee of the Whole on September 30; to get feedback from residents before first reading on 
October 8. Deputy Clerk stated we can do a public meeting at 6:00 pm and Committee of the Whole at 
7:00 pm on September 30; however, keep in mind there are multiple topics for Committee of the Whole.  
Jarvis raised concern raised regarding notifying the press and notifying the public. Clark asked if we can 
table it now; Mr. Hollins stated they can either table now or move to full council. Mr. Hollins said they can 
set the special meeting in full council. Amos asked what is reason to table now versus moving it forward; 
Jarvis stated it is the symbolism of giving the public input before the first reading of the ordinance; both 
newspapers ran articles in April, and not much public feedback since then.

Motion to table made by Clark, seconded by Coolman
Motion carried with the following vote:
Yes 5 – Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Lynch, Walker
No 1 – Amos

 
An Ordinance To Authorize The Mayor And Finance Director To Enter Into 
Contracts With The Director Of Transportation For The Improvements Of 
State Route 674 (Ordinance)

 - Request to move to full Council
 

ORD-19-054
Public Service

 

Mr. Peoples stated this authorizes ODOT to move forward with the Gender Road paving project.
Motion was made by Coolman to adopt ORD-19-054, seconded by Lynch
Motion was carried with the following vote:
Yes 6 – Coolman, Lynch, Amos, Clark, Jarvis, Walker

F. Items for Discussion 
  

G. Old/New Business 

 

 Clark stated an item under old business regarding admission tax and are we collecting anything from this; 
Brew Dog has had sizeable events and are we collecting anything from these.  (unintelligible) 

Walker state old business of a meeting with Madison Township Police; regarding incorporated and 
unincorporated jurisdiction; the ball has not been dropped; positive meeting; moving in the right direction. 
Amos asked if Madison Township is working on a MOU. Walker stated the county prosecutors are draft a 
memo of understanding and where charges will be filed; he is trying to bring some harmony. Mayor Ebert 
said that meeting happened in the fall of last year, whether to go through our Mayor’s Court or Franklin 
County, discussed the cost if person is in jail in Franklin or Fairfield County. Walker talked about the 
MARCS system and the communication; confusion about contract with or without with Madison County; 
expectation of coverage due to levy that was passed. Coolman stated this will be discussed at Committee 
of the Whole on September 30th. Walker re-stated that he didn’t drop the ball on this topic. Amos asked 
about the MOU and was it discussed a year ago.  Mr. Hollins state townships are governed by state law; 
township officers cannot write charges without a mutual aid agreement and they are drafting changes to 
write charges under our city ordinances; however, township officers do have jurisdiction in the entire 
township and can write charges under state law. Amos asked if one year waiting time was normal for this; 
Mr. Hollins stated county prosecutors have criminal matters and other duties that are taking their time. 
Amos asked if it was out of our order to approach and ask where it stands; Mr. Hollins stated the county 



Council Work Session                                                  Meeting Agenda                                          September 16, 2019

~ 6 ~

prosecutors would not respond, we are not their clients. Walker stated again that it was initiated and is 
moving along and asked what would be brought up at Committee of the Whole. Amos stated the purpose 
of discussing this at the Committee of the Whole is to address the concerns we have been hearing about 
coverage and everybody getting on the same page about what Madison Township covers. Walker state 
that is what the prosecutors are drafting is regarding coverage. Comment to not invite the township 
officials until we have more information. Mayor stated a township person said it was not intended for 
Madison Township to patrol Canal Winchester, but to be a back-up. Issue of communication discussed and 
the MARCS system. Amos asked Sgt. Cassel to attend the meeting; Sgt. Cassel agreed; he commented that 
if Canal Winchester is paying them to patrol, then they should patrol. Walker re-stated he just wanted to 
clear it up about where it stands.

H.

Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn was made by Lynch, seconded by Amos
Motion was carried by the following vote:
Yes 6 – Lynch, Amos, Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Walker
Adjourned at 7:25 pm

  



Canal Winchester

Town Hall
10 North High Street

Canal Winchester, OH 43110

Meeting Minutes - Draft
September 16, 2019

7:00 PM

City Council
Bruce Jarvis – President

Mike Walker – Vice President
Jill Amos

Will Bennett
Bob Clark

Mike Coolman
Patrick Lynch 



City Council Meeting Agenda September 16, 2019

~ 2 ~

A. Call To Order Call to order at 7:34 pm

B. Pledge of Allegiance Led by Amos 
Jarvis asked for all to partake in a moment of silence to remember Scott Davis and all the victims of the 
tragedy at Diley Ridge Emergency Room.

C.

Roll Call 

Present 6 – Amos, Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Lynch, Walker

Motion to excuse Bennett made by Lynch; seconded by Clark
Motion carried by the following vote:

Yes 6 – Lynch, Clark, Amos, Coolman, Jarvis, Walker

D. Approval of Minutes

MIN-19-040 9-3-2019 Work Session Minutes (Work Session Minutes)

MIN-19-041 9-3-2019 City Council Minutes (Council Minutes)
Motion to approve MIN-19-040 and MIN -19-041 made by Lynch; seconded
by Amos
Motion carried by the following vote:

Yes 6 – Lynch, Amos, Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Walker

E. Communications & Petitions

19-090 Constitution Week Proclamation (Proclamation)
Mayor Ebert spoke to the proclamation marking the 232nd anniversary of the drafting the U.S. 
Constitution; he presented it to a representative of the Daughters of the Revolution.

Jarvis stated communications came in from residents regarding noise at Loose Rail. 

F. Public Comments - Five Minute Limit Per Person

G. RESOLUTIONS

A Resolution Of Intent To Appropriate A Fee Simple Absolute Interest In 
2.391 Acres, More Or Less, Located At West Waterloo Street, For The Public 
Purpose Of Constructing Roadway Improvements, Which Shall Be Open To 
The Public Without Charge, And Declaring An Emergency (Resolution, 
Attachment)

- Adoption

RES-19-021
Development

Motion to adopt RES-19-021 made by Coolman; seconded by Walker
Motion carried by the following vote:



City Council Meeting Agenda September 16, 2019

~ 3 ~

Yes 6 – Coolman, Walker, Amos, Clark, Jarvis, Lynch

A Resolution Accepting The Amounts And Rates Determined By The Budget 
Commission And Authorizing The Necessary Tax Levies And Certifying Them 
To The County Auditor (Resolution)

- Adoption

RES-19-022
Finance

Motion to adopt RES-19-022 made by Clark; seconded by Coolman
Motion carried by the following vote:

Yes 6 – Clark, Coolman, Amos, Jarvis, Lynch, Walker

H. ORDINANCES

Third Reading

An Ordinance To Accept Hill Road Right-Of-Way (Ordinance, Exhibit A, 
Exhibit B)

- Adoption

ORD-19-049
Public Service
Sponsor: Lynch

Motion to adopt ORD-19-049 was made by Lynch; seconded by Amos
Motion carried by the following vote:

Yes 6 – Lynch, Amos, Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Walker

Second Reading 

First Reading 

An Ordinance Authorizing The Appropriation Of Property For The Public 
Purpose Of Constructing Roadway Improvements, Which Such Roadway 
Shall Be Open To The Public Without Charge, And Declaring An Emergency 
(Ordinance, Exhibit A, Exhibit B)

- Request waiver of second and/or third reading and adoption

ORD-19-052
Development

Lynch moved to waive the second and third readings and to declare an emergency. Amos asked  the 
reason for the emergency; Mr. Haire stated the reason is to start the legal proceedings to  obtain this 
property; Mr. Hollins stated it is a step process to convey to the CICC.  

Motion to waive second and third readings made by Lynch; seconded by 
Amos
Motion carried by the following vote:

Yes 6 – Lynch, Amos, Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Walker

Motion to adopt ORD-19-052 made by Lynch; seconded by Coolman
Motion carried by the following vote:

Yes 6 – Lynch, Coolman, Amos, Clark, Jarvis, Walker



City Council Meeting Agenda September 16, 2019

~ 4 ~

An Ordinance To Amend Section 331.44 Of The Codified Ordinances Of The 
City of Canal Winchester (Ordinance)

ORD-19-053
Law

-Tabled during work session

An Ordinance To Authorize The Mayor And Finance Director To Enter Into 
Contracts With The Director Of Transportation For The Improvements Of 
State Route 674 (Ordinance)

- First Reading Only

ORD-19-054
Public Service

I. Reports
Committee of the Whole Meeting at 7:00 pm and Public Meeting at 6:00 pm on September 30, 2019.
Monday, October 7, 2019 and Monday, October 21, 2019 at 6:00 pm work session and full council.

Mayor's Report
19-087  Mayor's Report

Fairfield County Sheriff

Law Director

Finance Director

Public Service Director
19-088  Project Updates

Development Director

J. Council Reports

Committee of the Whole - Monday, September 30, 2019 at 6 p.m.

Work Session/Council - Monday, October 7, 2019 at 6 p.m.

Work Session/Council - Monday, October 21, 2019 at 6 p.m.

CW Human Services - Mr. Lynch: commented regarding human services had a good garden crop, backpack
drive, getting seniors involved in trips; Coolman commented regarding the new sign to be installed our
front.

CWICC - Mr. Clark: stated the next meeting is October 30, 2019 at 11:30 am at Interurban Building

CWJRD - Mr. Bennett/Mrs. Amos: Amos stated the next meeting is Thursday, September 19 at Town Hall
after the shop hop; comment regarding Mr. Wildman

Destination: Canal Winchester - Mr. Walker: stated next the next meeting is September 24, 2019 at 6:30
pm at the Interurban Building

K. Old/New Business
Lynch commented in Rules Committee about following up on Town Hall Meeting and first meeting will be
October 8th at 7:00 on second Tuesday of each quarter at community center for topics raised by general
public following general format and following open meeting rules; will have basic structure and follow
Roberts Rules of Order, basic minutes. Jarvis confirmed this is a recommended change to Council Rules;
this meeting will be a special meeting until the official change is completed. Also comments about



City Council Meeting Agenda September 16, 2019

~ 5 ~

discussing texting and driving. Deputy Clerk asked if we need to create an official agenda and if a clerk is 
needed. Mr. Hollins stated an agenda is not needed; would be helpful to have audio recording.  Comment 
by Mayor Ebert to thank Tiffany for her work as Clerk in the past year and that she did a great job 
(applause). Clark stated he had a constituent approach him about sidewalks lacking at older section at 
Jennings and Kramer streets; not promoting but wanted to see if it is feasible to get sidewalks; or may 
need to be discussed later; Mr. Peoples responded he could respond to the resident. Deputy Clerk 
commented the discussion in Rules committee regarding the minutes being verbatim versus summary; 
asked for council’s feedback; Jarvis stated he refers back to the minutes for information; audio would still 
exist. Coolman stated there are three checks and balances on the minutes, in writing, audio and possible 
video; Jarvis stated he looks for his last name and what he said in the minutes for himself. It will be 
discussed again as a possible rule change. 

L. Adjourn to Executive Session (if necessary)
Motion to adjourn to Executive Session made by Lynch; seconded by 
Amos
Motion carried by the following vote:

Yes 6 – Lynch, Amos, Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Walker

Adjourned to Executive Session at 8:07 pm

M. Adjournment
Council resumed at 8:39 pm

Motion to adjourn council meeting made by Lynch; seconded by 
Amos
Motion carried by the following vote:

Yes 6 – Lynch, Amos, Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Walker
Meeting adjourned at 8:40 pm.



Canal Winchester 

Town Hall 
10 North High Street 

Canal Winchester, OH 43110 

Meeting Minutes - Draft 
September 30, 2019 

7:00 PM 

Committee of the Whole 
Bruce Jarvis – President 

Mike Walker – Vice President 
Jill Amos 

Will Bennett 
Bob Clark 

Mike Coolman 
Patrick Lynch  



Committee of the Whole       Meeting Agenda     September 30, 2019 

~ 2 ~

A. Call To Order Called to order at 7:00 pm 

B. Roll Call Present 7 – Amos, Bennett, Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Lynch, Walker 

C. Also In Attendance

Mayor Ebert, Matt Peoples, Lucas Haire, Gene Hollins

D. Items for Discussion

19-091 Police Coverage 

Jarvis stated issue of discussion is regarding police coverage; he doesn’t know of any new 
information since last discussed; asked Mr. Lynch for the objective of this evening’s 
discussion. Lynch stated he wanted to talk about where we are with our partnership with 
Madison Township police force; wants to create clarification about jurisdiction, rules of 
enforcement, radio communication, tickets, prosecution, incarceration, develop a DOU, a 
document of understanding as to what the rules of engagement are, meaning what do we 
expect from them and what do they expect from us so that citizens of CW can get the 
protection they are paying for; recently police has stepped up and seeing them all over the 
place and we want that to continue; if we have clear understanding of rules of engagement; 
possibly meet with them monthly to see what is working and what is not; what do they feel 
comfortable doing; work on the partnership; keep working together; create a committee to 
do this and meet with them to keep partnership working.  Jarvis asked if there are any 
thoughts on this. Discussion about how committees are set up for these discussions. Bennett 
stated he can explain, because he was chairman of rules committee when it happened to set 
up work sessions; in a work session every topic is able to be discussed (safety, service, 
finance) and be on the table; otherwise if you have a committee limited to a specific topic 
you can only discuss those topics, those topics are exclusive to those meetings; also 
challenging in these settings is they only met once a month and as a city only have one 
opportunity per month to get your item on council agenda; now city has two opportunities 
to get a policy item on agenda for city council;  plus at these sub-committee meetings, non-
committee member city council members would be present but technically not able to 
participate, lines were blurred, possibly violating sunshine laws; discussed with Mr. Hollins 
how to deal with this and the put all seven council members on one committee and have 
work sessions, and every topic can be on the table; focus may have shifted since then, but it 
provides more efficiency for the group to have every topic to be able to be discussed; 
president of council has ability to create a specific committee; can appoint as many 
committees as we want. Lynch stated how can we get the people of Canal Winchester the 



Committee of the Whole       Meeting Agenda     September 30, 2019 

~ 3 ~

police coverage they are paying for. Bennett stated we have the opportunity to create as 
many committees as we like. Jarvis stated these are usually temporary in nature; maybe 
talking about a standing committee. Lynch stated about police coverage, discrepancy about 
how tickets are written, how prosecuted, using which mayor’s court, how is Franklin County 
involved, how does it all work out. Walker stated he could explain a little bit about spear-
heading meetings several months ago on this topic, and after these meetings the county 
prosecutors are currently writing language about how coverage will work and how charges 
will be filed and how they will contribute, jurisdiction for incorporated and unincorporated, 
nobody has been excluding Madison Township Police at any time, urge citizens to take this 
to Madison Township, not keeping anyone out, it is being in county prosecutor’s hands 
legally how it is going to play out; repeated this at last meeting and again at this meeting. 
Question of when was the meeting?  Can’t recall when meeting was; waiting on attorneys to 
write laws, cannot recall when those meetings were held; deferred to Mr. Hollins.  Hollins 
said the meeting was about a year ago, not sure what hold up at prosecutors may be, 
agreement or memo of understanding, township and counties are creates of statute and 
have to have it granted in statute, we can do it organically, under statues they have 
jurisdiction to patrol all of township; meeting was to discuss if activity of township was to 
pick up in the city it made sense for both their officers and sheriff’s officers to have cases 
heard in Canal Winchester and have control of our local court system and ordinances and 
oversight of state laws and local control; nature of MOU mutual understanding agreement, 
no matter who pulls you over you end up in the same place; until the prosecutor for the 
township drafts an agreement and invoke authority under statute; the other policy concern 
is not have officers from different districts tripping over each other, which channels to use; 
not an expert on this type of subject matter, coordinating patrol in the city; most cities end 
up districting and making sure coverage is in place; make it worthwhile to have detailed 
discussions. Bennett asked a mutual aid agreement…it has to be written by the township 
prosecutor authority?  Hollins stated main purpose is to invoke the township authority and 
we want them to be comfortable with what has been written and should be written by their 
legal representative; what Hollins would draft would be from a city perspective not a 
township and we want them to be comfortable with the language. Bennett stated client ask 
him to do a first pass of language, can we aid them in writing a first pass rough idea of what 
we want it to look like. Hollins stated the reason we left it to them to do the drafting is 
because the city is under a charter and he is not used to drafting for a township but the 
county prosecutor is, a police division is funded by the entire township, there is enough 
permeations of township law. Bennett said if cities are able to remove themselves from 
townships, should we take that action. Hollins stated the basic reason a city stays in a 
township is fire support, we would not have a fire department. Discussion about contracting 
fire support with Fairfield County, or creating our own fire department, factors with 
response time and station locations, parts of Canal Winchester are in different townships. 



Committee of the Whole       Meeting Agenda     September 30, 2019 

~ 4 ~

Ebert said we also have Bloom and Violet Townships.  Peoples said issue of funds that go 
along with it, fire levies would go away, but would have to vote on city levy for new contract 
with people we just got rid of; it is a nuclear option. Bennett said it is a topic he had never 
heard broached before regarding cities leaving townships. Lynch about townships having 
police districts, is there legally a way a township to take us out of their police district but still 
get fire coverage, still pay fire coverage but pay police coverage. Hollins said there is legally 
a way, but you have to wait until current levy is up, go through a legislative process, 
township constable and deputy, legislatively change to a police district, challenges with 
capitol facilities, strength of force, funding. Lynch talked about exploring ideas; mutual aid 
agreement, how can we make that happen. Hollins said getting the board of trustees to 
make this a priority and get with their attorneys. Walker said if this was brought up to 
Madison Township that this is a possibility would this speed up the county prosecutors to 
speed this up. Hollins stated we are all their constituency, maybe show up at township 
meetings, getting citizens involved to bring this up. Clark said nothing has changed in last 
twelve months legally for Madison Township to patrol our streets, why did it take so long for 
them to react and beef up their patrols and that’s on them not us. Jarvis stated there was a 
change in leadership and could be part of the reason. Peoples said he spoke to administrator 
Broach and is willing to come in and speak and have a discussion, possible agenda item. 
Jarvis wanted to get a feel from what we wanted out of this; looking to open channels of 
communication, discuss options, some received well some not, some still need discussed 
internally for not; at old or new business at next work session to refine a concept and need 
time to think about it, should be an agenda item, seats will change here and there. Peoples 
said he has had conversations with township police and fire and working on a recording 
system and should be able to get those numbers soon and enhanced stats; patrols in his 
neighborhood recently due to enhanced reporting. Jarvis said about Canal Winchester 
residents who do not live in Madison Township would not see any additional change in 
service and not paying for it. Jarvis said let’s pick this up in one week and think about it more 
and refine it; have township people come in to talk about it. Discussion about who is invited 
to come at which upcoming meeting; Madison Township come at second October meeting; 
Bexley mayor coming at first October meeting; sheriff coming, too. Peoples asked Lynch for 
his list of questions for Madison Township to give to them time to review and be prepared.  
Bennett asked what role do I play in trying to facilitate this partnership, a committee, a 
mutual aid agreement. Hollins said what they want would have to be adopted by the 
township and the city council; agreements of any substance would have to be agreed upon 
by both parties. Bennett said we should have a sub-committee for a short term to be 
focused on this. Javis said time line with next meeting on October 7 guest from Bexley, 
questions can get fielded, then by the 20th we can review more and make a decision. Hollins 
stated he is out of country on 7th but here on 21st. Amos asked about the prosecutors are 
writing language for us to write tickets. Hollins said they can write tickets now under state 



Committee of the Whole       Meeting Agenda     September 30, 2019 

~ 5 ~

law, cannot process tickets written under our ordinance, only under statute; allow them to 
write tickets under our Mayor’s court ordinance; prosecutors are drafting the agreement; 
prosecutor represents the county and township, they are the attorney for both entities; 
agreement will allow them to write tickets and go through our mayor’s court.  Would 
incarceration happen in Fairfield or Franklin county?  Depends on what our arrangement is. 
Jarvis stated Lynch is going to send People his list of questions for Madison Township; funnel 
questions and answers through clerk of council so information is disseminated back to 
everyone. Jarvis said October 21st second meeting to be joined by township representatives 
if they are available and then we’ll decide a next step after that.   

19-092 Bed Tax (ORD 60-11 Creation of Destination: CW and Funding Sources, ORD-18-032 Bed 
Tax Grant Award Process, Exhibit to ORD-18-032, Bed Tax Collections - 2019) 

Jarvis stated next topic is the bed tax. Lynch said we are getting a lot of additional hotels 
and he quoted the past and upcoming revenues expected to the city; what do we do with 
that money; is the current formula one we still want to use or do we want to revise and see 
what we can do to enhance our community; the game has changed, it’s a lot of money. 
Coolman stated that social media reported wrong information about how much the city 
collects; the city collects 6% with 3% going to the city general fund, 1.5% goes to 
Destination: Canal Winchester, 1.5% goes to city council for a grant program. Coolman said 
we collect bed tax due to state law stating in order to collect bed tax we have to have a 
tourism bureau to receive it; as president of DCW when he took over there were a lot of 
plans that had to be put on back burner due to lack of funds; for events they host they 
secure volunteers, raise funds, have sponsors; to limit a bed tax recipient through the 
tourism bureau goes against the mission statement that was put into place, adopted 
ordinance in 2011 stipulating name change to receive bed tax funds and promote the 
historic downtown area and overall tourism; if there are limitations put on it due to surge of 
income, what about looking at how all of it is distributed. Amos said the 1.5% goes to DCW, 
1.5% goes to city council and if not used it goes back to the general fund; what happens if 
not all of that is granted out; it gets absorbed. Discussion about what city does with the 3% 
in the general fund; what are the needs of the city at the time; can it be earmarked towards 
certain projects, like specific enhancements to the city, such as signs, trees, etc.  Clark stated 
about using a quarter of the funds to fund more economic development, bringing in new 
business; could be used for other things like the building façade grant, beautify downtown, 
brings in businesses, help with roads; need industrial park for people to want to bring their 
business; enhance the bridge, the railroad bridge; economic development and tourism 
brings in new wealth and new businesses and allows our income tax to pay for everything 
else in the community. Bennett said the earmark funds for DCW at 1.5% should not change; 
that 1.5% should be off the table; it’s statutorily earmarked. Coolman said if historical 



Committee of the Whole                                   Meeting Agenda                                        September 30, 2019 

~ 6 ~ 
 

society can receive funds to promote the community; getting more bands for the Labor Day 
parade, it is tourism related, need creative ways to distribute funds to promote the 
community; funds have been granted to CWHS prom, etc.  Peoples stated he has financial 
information about the 3% that comes in…projected revenue for 2019 was $70,000, 
projected expenditures was $72,000, current fund balance of $146,000; whatever is not 
spent of 3% stays in the fund. Haire stated in the past when the façade grant program was 
created, they transferred $30,000 out of that fund; the council grant application process is 
maximum $2000, generally granted out $18,000 to $20,000 annually; unused funds remain 
in account; debate about grant program in 2011; changed to allow funding things like after 
prom program, boy scouts, etc. that do not generate revenues; changed again to cap at 
$2000 so one entity cannot request volume of funds. Coolman said issue of the grant funds 
were intended to assist with an event not fund the entire event.   Jarvis stated this is all food 
for thought; discussion ensued; discussion of what to do as more funds come in; 
beautification of the city; would like Ms. Jackson to be present for that discussion; can be 
incorporated into annual planning; funds toward beautification; one pot of money…general 
fund to pay for these projects; the flags, flowers, and banners are all related to tourism; 
funds relative to all the projects and what is necessary to complete. Coolman stated that 
Ms. Jackson discussed that with council in July when reviewing the annual budget; Peoples 
said we have healthy carry-over balance that can roll over maybe for projects that we want 
to do instead of earmarking.  

 • Information from Destination: Canal Winchester at end of minutes 
 

  19-093 Informal Council Meetings  

  

 Jarvis moved on to the topic of the informal council meetings regarding quarterly town hall 
meetings; clerk stated it was brought about by an email chain discussion. Discussion 
ensued about rules for these, what to call the meeting…a title, having an informal chair, 
rotating the chair, five minutes and two questions per speaker; has not been completed in 
rules yet. Amos asked the Clerk if the meeting has been publicized; clerk responded that 
the Special Information Town Hall meeting for October 8th has been posted to the city 
website and posted by paper at the Town Hall, Community Center and city office building; 
clerk also stated receiving calls of confusion about where it is located, i.e. it says town hall 
meeting, but it will be held at the community center. How do we notify the community that 
these are coming up?  Jarvis stated using local media; discussion about a press release 
being issued, maybe using a different name such as conversation with council; discussion 
consensus of using conversation with council as the name; using a press release far enough 
ahead as a promotional schedule, using Facebook postings for future meetings; using the 
local papers. Clark said we know the meetings are going to be quarterly, the second 
Tuesday and can issue press releases accordingly. This first meeting is already scheduled so 
these are ideas for moving forward; it is already posted on our website, maybe an alert 



Committee of the Whole       Meeting Agenda     September 30, 2019 

~ 7 ~

notification will go out as well.  

E. 

Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn made by Bennett; seconded by Amos 
Motion carried by the following vote: 

Yes 7 – Amos, Bennett, Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Lynch, Walker 
Meeting Adjourned at 8:02 pm 

















Canal Winchester

Town Hall
10 North High Street

Canal Winchester, OH 43110

Meeting Minutes - Draft
September 30, 2019

6:00 PM

City Council – Public Meeting
Bruce Jarvis – President

Mike Walker – Vice President
Jill Amos

Will Bennett
Bob Clark

Mike Coolman
Patrick Lynch 



City Council                                                   Meeting Agenda                                          January 1, 1900

~ 2 ~

A. Call To Order Called to order at 6:00 pm
  

B. Roll Call Present 7 – Amos, Bennett, Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Lynch, Walker
  

C. Also In Attendance 
  

 Mayor Ebert, Matt Peoples

D. Items for Discussion 

 

 

ORD-19-053  An Ordinance To Amend Section 331.44 Of The Codified Ordinances Of The 
City Of Canal Winchester (Ordinance) 

Jarvis: The item for discussion tonight is the draft ordinance for hands free devices and 
operating a motor vehicle.   Bennett stated we discussed this topic in previous meetings; 
idea is to move away from hand-held devices; look at ordinance from Bexley; designated 
the device needs to be cradled; primary offense, sheriff could stop distracted drivers, give 
warning before it is actually enforced; discussions with Bexley has written approximately 
60+ tickets over the past five years. Clark stated Bexley has written 73 tickets since 
January of 2018 and it is a $100 fine according to the clerk of courts in Bexley; police in 
Bexley would have number of warnings issued, but did not respond with the information.  
Bennett stated it goes to show this is becoming more and more of an issue with distracted 
driving, the safety concern and we need to intervene in distracted driving to make it an 
offense and give the sheriff teeth in the law to enforce.  Amos asked if Sgt. Cassell was 
going to attend tonight’s meeting; Ebert responded that Sgt. Cassell had mandatory 
training with county sheriff’s office. Amos stated the sheriff’s department is on-board, it is 
meant to catch those who are driving erratically, they will use good judgement, not 
intended to ticket everybody, the intention is to educate the community and help 
everybody drive safer. Bennett state the sheriff deputy’s use discretion in writing speeding 
tickets, looks at past warnings and tickets issued, tracking warnings given before writing 
tickets. 

Jarvis stated the ordinance from two weeks ago has been modified by Mr. Hollins; the 
point of this meeting is a public meeting and give anyone in the audience an opportunity 
to speak on this issue; come to the podium and give us your name and you have five 
minutes to speak. Is there anybody who would like to speak before council? Ed 
Winkleman came forward to speak; he stated his appreciation for council addressing this 
issue; he is for the texting and driving ordinance; has two kids, one started driving; it’s 
ridiculous, but reality is that he followed the trend of looking down at his phone, thinking 
he is a good driver, but soon realized he was driving distracted and it was dangerous to 
himself and others; ask sheriff’s to use discretion to the best of their ability.  Jarvis 
thanked him for his time to attend. (unintelligible discussion) Jarvis stated he understands 



City Council Meeting Agenda January 1, 1900

~ 3 ~

there could be another violation at the same time; Ebert said they can write multiple 
violations. Bennett stated he doesn’t think many people in Bexley challenged their 
violations. Jarvis stated signage to notify people would be at every entrance to the city. 
Scott Conner came forward to speak (cannot hear parts of the discussion due to 
microphone issue); questions by Lynch, Bennett, Amos. Randy Stemen came forward to 
speak (cannot hear parts of the discussion due to microphone issue); comments by 
Bennett that Sgt. Cassell has said people would not immediately be stopped if he sees you 
on your phone, it depends if you are also driving erratically; comments about if phone is in 
a cradle; Amos stated the sheriff said he is not targeting a responsible driver, but if person 
is clearly driving erratically and seems dangerous to others; Walker commented about 
phone in cradle and sees a text come across and it is a tease to answer it and may pay 
more attention to it. Jarvis thanked Mr. Stemen for his thoughts. Jarvis stated that you 
can’t legislate common sense comes and common sense comes in on the law enforcement 
side; we have to have something law can use as a tool; question of Bexley representative 
coming to speak on this issue; Ebert stated he has spoken to Bexley mayor and he said it 
has been a very controversial issue. Jarvis said this is not the only opportunity for public 
input, there will be more readings and time for input. Question of making city vehicles 
liable under the law; Coolman said he had raised this issue before and he would like for 
them to be exempt, city employees on the road crew who are mowing, plowing snow, etc. 
and it is important they are able to communicate efficiently and safely, they should not be 
using the hand-held devices for personal use. Bennett stated Bexley ordinance says it will 
not apply to persons using emergency vehicles, etc. or for public safety; that snow plow 
actions are exempt; possibly subject to discipline if in accident while on their phones 
depending on the severity; opportunity to exempt employees who are responding to an 
emergency.  Jarvis asked to defer to the Mayor and Mr. Peoples on this point. Coolman 
stated he sees police officers on their phones all the time without their lights on; same 
opportunity for city employees. (unable to hear discussion due to microphone issue) 
Coolman said we need to allow city workers to work efficiently and word it so they can be 
safe and operate in a public emergency and find out where their co-workers are at and be 
safe. Jarvis asked for anybody else present to speak; nobody else came forward.

Jarvis asked the council members to discuss further.  Bennett stated issues of how 
language differs from Bexley ordinance; in emergency situation you need a tool for 
employees and they should be covered, otherwise discourage use a hand-held device in 
vehicle unless emergency. Walker stated it would be nice to hear from Mayor of Bexley to 
give his thoughts. Amos stated that it would be nice to have Sgt. Cassell here to share his 
thoughts. Jarvis stated tonight was about hearing public input and opportunity to be heard 
because it will affect everybody driving. Bennett said he likes how the Bexley ordinance 
was written and it was plainly written and very understandable. Walker commented that 



City Council Meeting Agenda January 1, 1900

~ 4 ~

we are missing Mr. Hollins tonight and hearing his input, and Sgt. Cassell and the Bexley 
Mayor.  
Jarvis stated if no further discussion we will have more opportunity at next meeting in 
October.  

E.

Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn made by Bennett; seconded by Clark
Motion carried by the following vote:

Yes 7 – Amos, Bennett, Clark, Coolman, Jarvis, Lynch, Walker
Meeting adjourned at 6:36 pm



Our Mission: To deliver The Best Possible Service To Our Customers

Madison Township Fire Department
Franklin County, Ohio
4567 Firehouse Lane

Groveport, Ohio 43125
Sta. 181        Business Tel: (614) 837-7883 Fax:  (614) 836-0716
Sta. 182        Business Tel: (614) 837-5149 Fax:  (614) 837-5147

        Sta. 183        Business Tel: (614) 828-8545        Fax: (614) 829-7424

CANAL WINCHESTER SEPTEMBER 2019
         
Mayor Ebert, Members of Council and Staff,

 My pleasure to introduce Madison Township Fire Chief Derek Robinson.
 Open House at Station 182 October 6, 2019.  1:00 pm – 3:00 pm

Fire Safety Demonstrations, Kids Fire Combat Challenge, Bounce House, MedFlight 
landing, Station & Vehicle on display and refreshments and Sparky.  

Madison Fire (All) EMS ALS 497 (+93) BLS 147 (+15) FIRE 134 (+41)
Advanced Life Support Basic Life Support

Canal Winchester (Only) EMS ALS   84 (+8) BLS   27 (+15) FIRE   17   (-7)
Advanced Life Support Basic Life Support

FIRE RUNS - Foreign Odor Porter Nothing Found
Total 17 Medical Alarm Covenant Accidental Activation   

Structure Fire Bonfire behind this address.
Auto Fire 33/Gender Engine Compartment

Prentiss School Engine Compartment – Battery Short
Personal Assist Covenant Assist Resident off floor

Covenant Assist Resident off floor 
Covenant Assist Resident off floor 
Groveport Assist Resident off floor

Gas Leak Elm Nothing Found / Advise Columbia Gas
Fire Alarm Ashlar Burnt Bread

Gender Pull Station / Accidental Customer
Gender Nothing Found / Faulty Alarm
Gender School Fire Drill
Sarwil Changing Batteries 
Washington Gym Beam Detector
Winchester Blvd Pull Station – Memory Care Unit

Respectfully submitted,             
Interim Fire Chief Jeff Fasone







RESOLUTION NO. 19-023

A RESOLUTION ENDORSING THE PASSAGE OF THE 2019 FRANKLIN COUNTY CHILDREN SERVCIES 3.1 
MILL RENEWAL LEVY-ISSUE 10

WHEREAS, Franklin County Children Services (FCCS) helps more than 30,000 abused and 
neglected children each year by investigating allegations of child abuse and neglect, providing voluntary 
or court-ordered protective services to families whose children can remain safely in their own homes, 
helping parents resolve their family problems and placing children in temporary foster care homes or in 
permanent adoptive homes when necessary; and

WHEREAS, the Opiate Crisis has dramatically increased the placement costs of the agency and 
more children are in care and their needs, both physically and emotionally, are more intense; and

WHEREAS, Children Services works hard at keeping children with their birth families but when 
that is not possible, placement with relatives is the preferred choice.  And Kinship care has grown 
significantly in the last few years with the agency placing 1,941 children in 2018 with kinship caregivers, 
an increase of 74% since 2014; and 

WHEREAS, when a permanent solution is needed, FCCS has been very successful in securing 
caring and committed adoptive families.  Since 2014, more than 800 children have been adopted into 
loving families; and

WHEREAS, Franklin County Children Services is funded primarily through two 10-year levies---
spread five years apart—a 1.9 mill levy that was renewed in 2014 and a 3.1 mill levy, passed in 2009 that 
expires at the end of 2019.

WHEREAS, the 3.1 mill levy, expiring at the end of this year, accounts for more than 42% of the 
agency’s income and without renewal of this levy, vitally needed services to abused and neglected 
children will be impacted; and

WHEREAS, the 3.1 mill renewal levy will not increase taxes for home owners but will allow 
Children Services to continue to serve the county’s vulnerable children and their families.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER, 
STATE OF OHIO:

That we support and endorse, Issue 10, the Franklin County Children Services Levy.



DATE PASSED: _______________

ATTEST: ________________________ _____________________________
CLERK OF COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

________________________ _____________________________
LAW DIRECTOR MAYOR

DATE APPROVED: ______________

I herby certify that the resolution as set forth above was published for a period of not less 
than fifteen (15) days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than three (3) 
public places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in the Canal 
Winchester Charter.

_______________________
CLERK OF COUNCIL



RESOLUTION NO. 19-024

A RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH THE ROUTE 33 NORTH COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA AND TO 
AUTHORIZE REAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS ESTABLISHED BY SECTIONS 3735.65 THROUGH 

3735.70 OF THE OHIO REVISED CODE 

WHEREAS, this Council desires to pursue all reasonable and legitimate incentive measure to assist 
and encourage development in specific areas of the City of Canal Winchester that have not enjoyed 
reinvestment from remodeling or new construction; and 

WHEREAS, a survey of housing on file with the Clerk of Council as required by Section 3736.66 of 
the Ohio Revised Code has been prepared for the area to be included in the proposed Community 
Reinvestment Area; and 

WHEREAS, the maintenance of existing structures and construction of new structures in that area 
would serve to encourage economic stability, maintain real property values, and generate new 
employment opportunities; and  

WHEREAS, the remodeling of existing structures and the construction of new structures in the CRA 
constitutes a public purpose for which real property exemptions may be granted;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER, OHIO, 
THAT: 

Section 1. The area designated as the Route 33 North Community Reinvestment Area 
constitutes an area in which housing facilities or structures of historical significance 
are located, and in which new construction or repair of existing facilities has been 
discouraged. 

Section 2. Pursuant to Section 3735.66 of the Ohio Revised Code, the Route 33 North 
Community Reinvestment Area is hereby established in the following area: 

This area is generally described with a western boundary of the Rager Road; 
an eastern boundary of the Field of Honor, Union Grove Cemetery, and 
Cemetery Road; a northern boundary of Bixby Road and the Canal 
Winchester corporate limits; and a southern boundary of US 33 from Rager 
Road to Winchester Pike. 

The Community Reinvestment Area is approximately depicted as the crosshatched 
area on the map attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference herein.  
Only commercial and/or industrial properties consistent with the applicable zoning 
regulations within the Community Reinvestment Area will be eligible for exemptions 
under this program. For purposes of the Resolution and Sections 3735.65 through 
3735.70 inclusive of the Revised Code, mixed use developments are hereby deemed 
to be “commercial” developments. The term “mixed use development” shall mean a 
development incorporating both commercial and multi-family residential uses.  



Section 3. All properties identified in Exhibit A as being within the designated Community 
Reinvestment Area are eligible for the incentive specified in this Resolution. This 
proposal is a public/private partnership intended to promote and expand 
conforming uses in the designated area. As part of the project, the City of Canal 
Winchester has undertaken supporting public improvements in the designated area. 

Section 4. Within the Route 33 North Community Reinvestment Area, pursuant to Section 
3735.67 of the Ohio Revised Code, for each commercial or industrial structure that is 
constructed and for which a certificate of occupancy is used, the percentage of the 
tax exemption on the increase in the assessed valuation resulting from such 
improvements and the term of those exemptions shall be negotiated on a case-by-
case basis in advance of construction or remodeling occurring according to the rules 
outlined in Section 3735.67 of the Revised Code. The particulars of the exemption 
will be set forth in writing in a Community Reinvestment Area Agreement as 
outlined in Section 3735.671 of the Ohio Revised Code. The percentage of the tax 
exemption and the term of the exemption shall not exceed the following:  

a. Up to ten (10) years and up to fifty percent (50%) for the remodeling of
existing commercial or industrial facilities for which the cost of
remodeling is at least $100,000, as described in Section 3735.67 of the
Revised Code, the term and percentage of which shall be negotiated on a
case-by-case basis in advance of remodeling occurring.

b. Up to fifteen (15) years and up to one-hundred percent (100%) for the
construction of new commercial or industrial facilities, the term and
percentage of which shall be negotiated on a case-by-case basis in
advance of construction occurring.

Section 5. All commercial and industrial projects are required to comply with the (i) State 
application fee requirements of Section 3735.672(C) of the Ohio Revised Code and 
(ii) local annual monitoring fee of one percent (1%) of the amount of taxes
exempted under the agreement, subject to a minimum of Five Hundred Dollars
($500.00) up to a maximum of Twenty-Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) annually,
unless waived.

Section 6. The Housing Officer as defined in Section 3735.65 of the Ohio Revised Code is 
hereby authorized and directed, on behalf of the City, to petition the State Director 
of Development, in accordance with Section 3735.66 of the Ohio Revised Code, for 
certification of the Route 33 North Community Reinvestment Area. 

Section 7. The Community Reinvestment Area Housing Council established by the Council of 
the City of Canal Winchester shall make an annual inspection of the properties 
within the district for which exemption has been granted under Section 3735.67 of 
the Ohio Revised Code and shall also hear appeals under Section 3735.70 of the 
Ohio Revised Code.  



Section 8. The Tax Incentive Review Council established by the Council of the City of Canal 
Winchester to review the compliance of all other agreements involving Community 
Reinvestment Area shall annually review the compliance of agreements involving 
the granting of exemptions for commercial or industrial real property improvements 
under the Resolution and make written recommendations to this Council as to 
continuing, modifying to terminating those agreements based upon the 
performance of the agreement.  

Section 9. This Council reserved the right to re-evaluated the designation of the Route 33 
North Community Reinvestment Area after December 31, 2028, at which time this 
Council may direct the Housing Officer not to accept any new applications for 
exemptions as described in Section 3735.67 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Section 10. A copy of this Resolution shall be forwarded to the Franklin County Auditor, and a 
copy of this Resolution shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in 
the City once a week for two (2) consecutive weeks immediately following its 
passage.  

Section 11. This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period 
allowed by law. 

DATE PASSED_____________      ___________________________________ 
 PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

ATTEST_________________________  ___________________________________ 
 MAYOR 

 DATE APPROVED_____________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_______________________________ 
LAW DIRECTOR 

I hereby certify that the resolution as set forth above was published for a period of not less than 
fifteen days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than three (3) public 
places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in the Canal 
Winchester Charter. 

__________________________________ 
  Finance Director/Clerk of Council 



EXHIBIT A 



CITY OF 
CANAL WINCHESTER, OHIO 

ROUTE 33 NORTH COMMUNITY 
REINVESTMENT AREA HOUSING 

SURVEY 

PREPARED BY: 
Lucas Haire, Housing Officer 

SEPTEMBER 2019





COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA 
Housing Survey 

3 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

The purpose of this report is to determine whether the area shown in Appendix A should be designated 
as a Community Reinvestment Area (CRA) as defined by the Ohio Revised Code (ORC) Sections 
3735.65-3735.70. The survey area is made up of approximately 227 acres generally located along the 
north side of the US 33 corridor. The proposed Route 33 North CRA location represents a small portion 
of the city which has 17 total housing units located within its boundaries. In order to meet the CRA criteria 
for eligibility, the area must consist of “housing facilities or structures of historical significance are located 
and new housing construction and repair of existing facilities or structures are discouraged.” By 
establishing Route 33 North CRA the City of Canal Winchester would be better able to encourage 
development and improvement within this portion of the community which has not benefited from growth 
within the surrounding areas. 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF CANAL WINCHESTER, OHIO 

The City of Canal Winchester is a suburban community which is located in both Franklin and Fairfield 
County. The City benefits from it suburban location with great access to the state capital and being within 
the fastest growing region in the Midwest. The City was named the fastest growing community in Ohio, 
by percentage, in 2017 based on US Census population estimates with a 4.4% growth rate. The total 
population of the community is estimated by the US Census Bureau at 8,604 in 2018 which is up from a 
2010 population of 7,101. While the trend of residential growth is strong in Canal Winchester not all areas 
of the community are benefiting from the growth. There are still pockets of the community that have 
struggled due to access restrictions, blighting influences of neglected properties, and surrounding land 
uses. 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF Route 33 CRA 

The area of the proposed Route 33 North CRA consists of approximately 227 acres located along the north side 
of US 33. This area is generally described with a western boundary of the Rager Road; an eastern boundary of 
the Field of Honor, Union Grove Cemetery, and Cemetery Road; a northern boundary of Bixby Road and the 
Canal Winchester corporate limits; and a southern boundary of US 33 from Rager Road to Winchester Pike. 
This area is also shown on the attached map Appendix A. 

While the majority of the residential and commercial properties within Canal Winchester are in good condition, 
the area within the proposed CRA contains residential and commercial properties which are undeveloped or 
underdeveloped. This area of Canal Winchester has suffered from its proximity to US 33 while many other 
parcels in the community have benefitted from the access that US 33 has provided. The growing amount of 
traffic including truck traffic along US 33 has limited the desirability of the area for residential construction. Road 
noise is a contributing factor to this area not being developed for residential purposes and limits the pool of 
buyers for existing residential units and rehabilitation of those properties. Access to this area of Canal 
Winchester can also be challenging. In August 2004 the access point at Cemetery Road and US 33 was 
eliminated. This change essentially cut off access to the portion of Canal Winchester north of US 33 from the 
remainder of the community. This left this area of the City isolated and continues to discourage development 
and redevelopment within this area. 

As described in greater detail herein, creation and implementation of the Proposed CRA will encourage 
development and redevelopment of parcels that would benefit this specific area but also the surrounding 
neighborhoods and the entire community. This will be accomplished by using the CRA as a tool to incent 
housing construction and economic development in a way the optimizes land use for the benefit of existing and 
future residents, visitors and business operators within and proximate to the Proposed CRA. 



COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA 
Housing Survey 

4 

MAP OF PROPOSED ROUTE 33 North CRA 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTIONS IN THE ROUTE 33 NORTH CRA 

A windshield survey was conducted of the residential and commercial buildings located within the 
proposed CRA. Each building was rated as “Good,” “Fair,” or “Poor” based upon the apparent condition of 
the property. “Good” condition properties appear to have no damage or defects and are not in need of 
repair. “Fair” condition properties appear to have minor damage or defects and appear to be in need of 
minor repair. “Poor” condition properties appear to have damage or defects in need of moderate or greater 
repair. 

Below are descriptions and images of each property rated in poor condition to show that new housing 
construction and repair of existing facilities or structures are discouraged. 



COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA 
Housing Survey 

5 

Property Address: 611 Winchester Pike, Canal Winchester, OH 43110 
Parcel Number: 184-001337 
Property Built In: 1947 
Property Assessed Value: $78,200 (Building), $34,500 (Land) 
Structure Condition: Poor – broken and boarded windows, missing door, peeling paint, crumbling driveway. 



COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA 
Housing Survey 

6 

Property Address: 627 Winchester Pike, Canal Winchester, OH 43110 
Parcel Number: 184-000930 
Property Built In: 1962 
Property Assessed Value: $77,400 (Building), $16,100 (Land) 
Structure Condition: Poor – cracked siding, driveway in disrepair, accumulation of rubbish and debris, inoperable 
vehicles. 



COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA 
Housing Survey 

7 

General Housing Stock Information 

The proposed CRA contains housing stock that is in need of considerable repair. In some 
instances, demolition and redevelopment may be the most appropriate. There are 17 housing 
units within the proposed CRA #3. 

Age of Housing Stock 

The age of housing stock is useful measure of potential historic significance as well as whether 
new construction has been “discouraged.” The majority of housing units in the proposed CRA 
were built prior to 1979, see table below. As such these homes are more than 40 years old and 
thus are potentially historic. On average the homes located within the proposed Route 33 North 
CRA are older than other homes in the community and little to no new construction has taken 
place in the area since the 1990’s while the majority homes in Canal Winchester have been 
constructed since 1990. 

All of Canal Winchester Proposed CRA 
Year Built Units Percentage Units Percentage 
2014-2016 42 1.39% 0 0.00% 
2010-2013 180 5.97% 0 0.00% 
2000-2009 1175 38.97% 1 5.88% 
1990-1999 803 26.63% 2 11.76% 
1980-1989 113 3.75% 1 5.88% 
1970-1979 261 8.66% 2 11.76% 
1960-1969 88 2.92% 4 23.53% 
1950-1959 169 5.61% 2 11.76% 
1940-1949 41 1.36% 3 17.65% 
1939 or earlier 143 4.74% 2 11.76% 

Total Units 3015 17 
Data source: US Census, 2012-2016  American Community Survey 5 year estimate 

and Franklin County Auditor Data 



COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA 
Housing Survey 

8 

Housing Stock Values 

The median value of an owner-occupied housing unit in the City of Canal Winchester is $194,000. 
In contrast the median value of an owner-occupied housing unit in Route 33 CRA is $150,000. 
While these statistics appear comparable the homes in the proposed Route 33 North CRA are 
much more likely to be on large lots with a much greater proportion of the value in land rather 
than improvements compared to the remainder of the community. In order to improve housing 
values within Route 33 North CRA there needs to be new construction and renovation of 
properties which is currently discouraged. 

The following table lists the number of permits issued by the City’s Development Department in 
2015-2017. 

Permits Issued 

All of Canal Winchester 2016 2017 2018 
  Residential 139 109 146 
  Commercial/Industrial 79 68 41 

Proposed Route 33 CRA 

  Residential 0 1 0 
  Commercial/Industrial 1 0 1 

Source: Canal Winchester Development Department 

The total estimated value of all projects in the City related to the residential building permits issued 
were $11,964,917 (2016), $10,548,468 (2017), and $13,447,239 (2018). Regarding all building 
permits associated with commercial or industrial projects in the City, the total estimated value of 
those projects were $15,988,166 (2016) $11,526,855 (2017), and $18,078,959 (2018). 

The total estimated value related to the residential building permits issued within Route 33 North 
CRA were $0 (2016) and $25,000 (2017), and $0 (2018). Regarding commercial or industrial 
projects within Route 33 CRA, the total estimated value of those projects were $1,297 (2016), $0 
(2017) and $2,650,486 (2018). These statistics indicate that very little investment is taking place 
within the proposed Route 33 North CRA with the exception of a new car dealership in 2018.  The 
only residential permit issued in the 3-year period was to install solar panels. This lack of 
investment shows that residents within the area are discouraged from investing in their homes 
while the surrounding community has a significant residential investment.



COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA 
Housing Survey 

9 

CONCLUSIONS 

The proposed Route 33 North CRA contains housing units that are declining in value or holding their 
value while the surrounding properties have experienced significant value gains. Transportation and 
access changes that have taken place in the area have negatively impacted the desirability of 
construction of new homes or making significant investments into existing housing. The age of homes 
within the proposed CRA area is older than that of the surrounding community and no new housing 
construction has taken place in nearly twenty years. The declining desirability of this area is also evident 
from the lack of building permits that have been issued within the area while the remainder of the 
community has seen a significant boom in construction. Certain properties within the proposed CRA have 
a blighting influence on the surrounding community and discourage additional investment. 

Therefore, the proposed Route 33 North CRA meets the criteria for a Community Reinvestment Area as 
defined by Ohio Revised Code as “one in which housing facilities or structures of historical significance 
are located and new housing construction and repair of existing facilities or structures are discouraged.”



COMMUNITY REINVESTMENT AREA 
Housing Survey 

10 

APPENDIX A 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-025

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF STORMWATER AWARENESS WEEK

WHEREAS, urban stormwater runoff is the threat to water quality in Canal Winchester; and,

WHEREAS, population growth, residential and commercial development, and the resulting 
changes to the landscape will only increase stormwater quality and quantity concerns throughout 
Franklin County; and,

WHEREAS, these impacts cannot be entirely avoided or eliminated but can be minimized; and,

WHEREAS, the need arises not only from the regulatory requirements of EPA General 
Construction and Municipal Stormwater rules, but also from the recognition that citizens and local 
decision makers will benefit from a greater awareness of how the cumulative impacts of decisions at 
home, at work and through local policies impact our water quality, stream corridors and flooding; and,

 WHEREAS, the development and implementation of effective, outcomes-based stormwater 
education and outreach programs will meet the related federal stormwater pollution control 
requirements and those of the communities they serve so that Franklin County and the Greater 
Columbus region continues to be a great place to live, work and play.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER, STATE 
OF OHIO:

Section 1. That the City of Canal Winchester fully supports the recognition of the week of 
October 20-26, 2019 as Stormwater Awareness Week.

Section 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law.

DATE PASSED 
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST 
    CLERK OF COUNCIL MAYOR

DATE APPROVED 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

LEGAL COUNSEL



I hereby certify that the ordinance as set forth above was published for a period of not less than 
fifteen days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than three (3) public 
places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in the Canal Winchester 
Charter.

Clerk of Council



ORDINANCE NO. 19-053

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 331.44 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER

WHEREAS, the City of Canal Winchester recognizes the dangerous and increasing trend 
of distracted driving; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to protect its residents, visitors, and children from injury 
caused by distracted driving; and

WHEREAS, texting while driving is currently only punishable in Canal Winchester as a 
secondary offense in addition to other charges;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CANAL WINCHESTER, OHIO:

Section 1. That Section 331.44 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of Canal 
Winchester be amended to reflect the changes in the attached Exhibit A.

Section 2.

DATE PASSED ________________________ _________________________________
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST______________________________ _________________________________
   CLERK OF COUNCIL MAYOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

______________________________________
LEGAL COUNSEL

I hereby certify that the ordinance as set forth above was published for a period of not 
less than fifteen days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than 
three (3) public places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in 
the Canal Winchester Charter.

________________________________
CLERK OF COUNCIL



331.44 SENDING, READING, OR WRITING A TEXT MESSAGE OR ACCESSING THE 
INTERNET WHILE DRIVING.

(a) As used in this section:

(1) “Text message” means any message sent, stored or received via mobile
communication device. For the purpose of this section, an email message shall be considered a 
text message.

(2) “Mobile communication deviceElectronic wireless communications device” means
(a) a wireless telephone; (b) a text-messaging device; (c) a personal digital assistant; (d) a
computer, including a laptop computer and a computer tablet; or (e) any other substantially 
similar wireless device that is designed or used to communicate text.any portable electronic 
device capable of transmitting or receiving data in the form of a text message or capable of 
accessing the internet including but not limited to a wireless telephone, a text-messaging device, 
a personal digital assistant, or a personal computer, but specifically excluding portable internet 
based vehicle navigation systems being used for that purpose.

(3) “Emergency vehicles” and “public safety vehicles” shall have the same meaning as
set forth in Ohio R.C. 4511.01(D) and (E).

(b) No person shall operate a motor vehicle on any street, highway, or property used by the
public for purposes of vehicular traffic or parking while using in any manner an electronic
wireless communications device. mobile communication device to:

(1) Manually enter letters, numbers, or text messages or read any received emails or text
messages transmitted to or stored within such device; or

(2) Send, read, create, or interact with internet-based content, play games or otherwise
interact with the internet.

(c) Division (b)This provision of this section shall not apply to any of the following:

(1) A person using an electronic wireless communications device for emergency
purposes, including an emergency contact with a law enforcement agency, hospital or health care 
provider, fire department, or other similar emergency agency or entity; Operators of emergency 
or public safety vehicles where the operator of a public safety device uses such device in the 
course of the operator’s official duties;

(2) A person driving a public safety vehicle who uses a handheld electronic wireless
communications device in that manner in the course of the person’s duties;

(32) Any person using an electronic wireless communications device whose motor
vehicle is in a stationary position and the motor vehicle is outside a lane of travel;  reporting a 
health or safety emergency;

(4) A person receiving wireless messages on a device regarding the operation or
navigation of a motor vehicle; safety-related information, including emergency, traffic, or 
weather alerts; or data used primarily by the motor vehicle;



(53) A person using a navigation device in a voice-operated or hands-free manner who
does not manipulate the device while driving;Drivers parked, standing or stopped or removed 
from the flow of traffic, or stopped due to an inoperable vehicle;

(6) A person conducting wireless interpersonal communication with a device that does
not require manually entering letters, numbers, or symbols or reading text messages, except to 
activate, deactivate, or initiate the device or a feature or function of the device;

(7) A person operating a commercial truck while using a mobile data terminal that
transmits and receives data;

(8) A person using a handheld electronic wireless communications device in conjunction
with a voice-operated or hands-free device feature or function of the vehicle.  “Voice-operated or 
hands-free device” means a device that allows the user to vocally compose or send, or to listen to 
a text-based communication without the use of either hand except to activate or deactivate a 
feature or function.

(d) Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, no law enforcement officer shall cause
an operator of an automobile being operated on any street or highway to stop the automobile for
the sole purpose of determining whether a violation of subsection (d) hereof has been or is being
committed or for the sole purpose of issuing a ticket, citation, or summons for a violation of that
nature or causing the arrest of or commencing a prosecution of a person for a violation of that
nature, and no law enforcement officer shall view the interior or visually inspect any automobile
being operated on any street or highway for the sole purpose of determining whether a violation
of that nature has been or is being committed.

(e) Whoever violates this section shall be guilty of a minor misdemeanor.

(Ord. 30-10. Passed 8-16-10.)

0128850.0615530   4812-5594-7160v3v2v1



ORDINANCE NO. 19-054 

AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR AND FINANCE 
DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO CONTRACTS WITH THE DIRECTOR OF 

TRANSPORTATION FOR THE IMPROVEMENTS OF STATE ROUTE 674 

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has identified the need to improve SR-674 (Gender Rd.) 
within the corporation limits of the City of Canal Winchester; and,  

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Director of Public Service for the City of Canal 
Winchester to cooperate with the Ohio Department of Transportation to facilitate the project 
and gives consent to the Director of Transportation to complete the project; and, 

WHEREAS, the project is identified as: 
PID Number 107784 
FRA-674-2.07 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANAL 
WINCHESTER, STATE OF OHIO: 

Section 1. Being in the public interest, the City of Canal Winchester gives consent to 
the Director of Transportation to complete the above described project 

Section 2. The City shall cooperate with the Director of Transportation in the above 
described project as follows: 

The City hereby agrees to cooperate with the Director of Transportation of the State of 
Ohio in the planning, design and construction of the identified highway improvement project and 
grants consent to the Ohio Department of Transportation for its development and construction 
of the project in accordance with plans, specifications and estimates as approved by the Director; 

The Ohio Department of Transportation shall assume and bear one hundred percent 
(100%) of the necessary costs of the State’s highway improvement project; the City’s share of the 
cost for the pavement surface treatment is estimated to be $140,445.  

The City agrees to assume and bear one hundred percent (100%) of the total cost of those 
features requested by the City which are not necessary for the improvement as determined by 
the State and Federal Highway Administration. 

Section 3. The City agrees that all right-of-way required for the described project will 
be acquired and/or made available in accordance with current State and Federal regulations.  
Right-of-way costs include eligible utility costs.  The City agrees that all utility accommodation, 
relocation, and reimbursement shall comply with the current provisions of 23 CFR 645 and the 
ODOT Utilities Manual. 



Section 4. Upon completion of the project, and unless otherwise agreed, the City 
shall: (1) provide adequate maintenance for the project in accordance with all applicable state 
and federal law, including, but not limited to Title 23, U.S.C., Section 116; (2) provide ample 
resources, as necessary, for the maintenance of the project; (3) maintain the right-of-way, 
keeping it free of obstructions, and (4) hold said right-of-way inviolate for public highway 
purposes. 

Section 5. The Mayor and Finance Director are hereby empowered on behalf of the 
City of Canal Winchester to enter into contracts with the Director of Transportation necessary to 
complete the above described project. 

Section 6. That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure, 
necessary for the preservation of public health, safety and welfare, such emergency arising for 
the need to meet ODOT’s project schedule; wherefore this ordinance shall take effect and be in 
force from and after its passage. 

DATE PASSED ______________________ ______________________________ 
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

ATTEST ____________________________ ______________________________ 
 CLERK OF COUNCIL MAYOR 

DATE APPROVED 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________________ 
LEGAL COUNSEL 

I hereby certify that the ordinance as set forth above was published for a period of not 
less than fifteen days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than 
three (3) public places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in 
the Canal Winchester Charter. 

Clerk of Council 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-055

AN ORDINANCE TO ACCEPT THE APPLICATION OF TERESA L. MCCORMICK FOR 
THE ANNEXATION TO THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY IN MADISON TOWNSHIP CONTAINING 0.75+/- ACRES AND BEING 
LOCATED AT 6055 BIXBY ROAD, TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP TO ZONE 0.75+/- 
ACRES TO LIMITED MANUFACTURING (LM), AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS, an Expedited Type II Petition for annexation of certain territory in Madison 
Township was duly filed by Teresa L. McCormick; and 

WHEREAS, the petition was duly considered by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Franklin County, Ohio, on July 9, 2019, wherein said Commissioners approved the annexation; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners certified a transcript of proceedings in 
connection with said annexation with the map and petition to the Clerk of the City of Canal 
Winchester who received the same on July 19, 2019; and  

WHEREAS, more than sixty days have elapsed from the date of filing of the transcript of 
such approval by the Board of Franklin County Commissions with the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined a Zoning Map Amendment to LM – Limited 
Manufacturing for approximately 0.75 +/- acres of land, including the aforementioned McCormick 
parcel, is appropriate to match adjacent zoning and to facilitate economic development; and 

WHEREAS, Council has determined that acceptance of the annexation and 
implementation and approval of the Limited Manufacturing zoning is in the best interest of the 
residents of the City of Canal Winchester;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CANAL WINCHESTER, OHIO: 

SECTION 1.  That the proposed annexation, as applied for in the petition of Teresa L. 
McCormick, which petition was filed with the Board of County Commissioners of Franklin 
County, Ohio on June 4, 2019 and which petition prayed for the annexation to the City of Canal 
Winchester of certain territory adjacent thereto and hereinafter described, which petition was 
approved for annexation to the City of Canal Winchester by the Board of County Commissioners 
on July 9, 2019, be  and hereby is accepted.  The territory annexed hereby is described in the legal 
description attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof as though fully rewritten herein.  
The certified transcript of the proceedings for annexation with an accurate map of the territory, 
together with the petition for annexation and other papers relating to the proceedings thereto of the 



County Commissioners are all on file with the Clerk of the City of Canal Winchester and have 
been for more than 60 days. 

SECTION 2.  That the Clerk be, and hereby is, authorized and directed to make three copies 
of this Ordinance, to each of which shall be attached a copy of the transcript of proceedings of the 
Board of County Commissioners relating thereto and a certificate as to the correctness thereof. 
The Clerk shall then forthwith deliver one copy to the County Auditor, one copy to the County 
Recorder, and one copy to the Secretary of State, and shall file notice of this annexation with the 
Board of Elections within thirty days after it becomes effective. 

SECTION 3. That the Zoning Map is hereby amended to reflect that the zoning for 
approximately 0.75 +/- acres of land located at 6055 Bixby Road, which real property is described 
in the legal description attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, be LM, 
Limited Manufacturing District. 

SECTION 4.  That this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure, 
necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety of the City of Canal 
Winchester, such emergency arising from the exigencies of commercial and industrial 
development of land within the City which provides for the economic and community welfare by 
providing the creation of jobs in the City; WHEREFORE, this ordinance shall take effect and be 
in force from and after its passage. 

DATE PASSED_____________________ ______________________________ 
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

ATTEST___________________________ ______________________________ 
               CLERK OF COUNCIL  MAYOR 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 
LEGAL COUNSEL 

I hereby certify that the ordinance as set forth above was published for a period of not 
less than fifteen (15) days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than 
three (3) public places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in 
the Canal Winchester Charter.  

______________________________ 
Clerk of Council 



ANNEXATION 
PLAT & DESCRIPTION 

ACCEPTABLE 
CORNELL R ROBERTSON, PE., P.S. 

FRANKLIN COUNTY ENGINEER 

Ry� Date 511.9/1 °I

May 20, 2019 

DESCRIPTION OF AN APPROXIMATE 0.7� ACRE 
SOUTH OF BIXBY ROAD, EAST OF RAGER ROAD, 

MADISON TOWNSHIP, FRANKLIN co., omo 

Situated in the State of Ohio, County of Franklin, Township of Madison, in the northeast quarter of Section 
23, Township 11 North, Range 21 West, Congress Lands and being a portion of a I acre tract of land 
conveyed to Teresa L. McCormick, by deed of recurd in Instrument No. 200909140133203, all records 
referenced to the Recorder's Office, Franklin County, Ohio, and bounded and described as follows: 

Beginning at the intersection of the south right•of-way line of Bixby Road (variable width) with the east 
right-of-way line of Rager Road (variable width); 

thence easterly along the south right-of-way line of Bixby Road and crossing a portion of said I acre tract
a distance of approximately 80 feet to a point in the east line of said I acre tract, in a west line of a 7.65 
acre tract ofland conveyed, as Parcel IV, to Willis M. Alspach, Trustee (25% Interest) and Joan A. Alspach,
Trustee (25% Interest), by deed of record in Instrument No. 201208090115353 and David Benjamin 
Alspach (50% Interest), by deeds of record in Official Record 3195, Page C 17 and at a northwest comer
of The City of Canal Winchester Corporation Limits, as approved by Ordinance No. and recorded 
in Instrument No. _________ _, 

---

thence southerly along a portion of the east line of said I acre tract, along a portion of a west line of said 
7 .6S acre tract and along a west line of said corporation line II distance of approx.imately 40S feet to a point
at the southeast comer of said I acre tract, at a comer of said 7 .65 acre tract and at a comer of said
corporation line; 

thence westerly along a portion of the south line of said 1 acre tract, along a portion of a north line of said
7.65 acre tract and along a north line of said corporation line II distance of approximately 80 feet to a point 
in the east right-of-way line of Rager Road and at a comer of said corporation line; 

thence northerly along the east right-of-way line of Rager Road and crossing a portion of said I acre tract
a distance ofapproximately 405 feet to the place of beginning;

containing approximately 0.75 acre of land, more or less. 

The above description was prepared by Kevin L. Baxter, Ohio Surveyor No. 7697, of C.F. Bird & R.J. Bull,
Inc., Consulting Engineers & Surveyors, Columbus, Ohio from best available Court House records, in
November, 2018. The above description was prepared for annexation purposes only and not intended for
transfer of real property. 

Kevin L. Baxter - Ohio Surveyor #7697

18-105/McCormick Annex Area

Exhibit A



ANNEXATION 
PLAT & DESCRIPTION 

ACCEPTABLE 
CORNELL R ROBERTSON, PE., P.S. 

FRANKLIN COUNTY ENGINEER 

Ry� Date 511.9/1 °I

May 20, 2019 

DESCRIPTION OF AN APPROXIMATE 0.7� ACRE 
SOUTH OF BIXBY ROAD, EAST OF RAGER ROAD, 

MADISON TOWNSHIP, FRANKLIN co., omo 

Situated in the State of Ohio, County of Franklin, Township of Madison, in the northeast quarter of Section 
23, Township 11 North, Range 21 West, Congress Lands and being a portion of a I acre tract of land 
conveyed to Teresa L. McCormick, by deed of recurd in Instrument No. 200909140133203, all records 
referenced to the Recorder's Office, Franklin County, Ohio, and bounded and described as follows: 

Beginning at the intersection of the south right•of-way line of Bixby Road (variable width) with the east 
right-of-way line of Rager Road (variable width); 

thence easterly along the south right-of-way line of Bixby Road and crossing a portion of said I acre tract
a distance of approximately 80 feet to a point in the east line of said I acre tract, in a west line of a 7.65 
acre tract ofland conveyed, as Parcel IV, to Willis M. Alspach, Trustee (25% Interest) and Joan A. Alspach,
Trustee (25% Interest), by deed of record in Instrument No. 201208090115353 and David Benjamin 
Alspach (50% Interest), by deeds of record in Official Record 3195, Page C 17 and at a northwest comer
of The City of Canal Winchester Corporation Limits, as approved by Ordinance No. and recorded 
in Instrument No. _________ _, 

---

thence southerly along a portion of the east line of said I acre tract, along a portion of a west line of said 
7 .6S acre tract and along a west line of said corporation line II distance of approx.imately 40S feet to a point
at the southeast comer of said I acre tract, at a comer of said 7 .65 acre tract and at a comer of said
corporation line; 

thence westerly along a portion of the south line of said 1 acre tract, along a portion of a north line of said
7.65 acre tract and along a north line of said corporation line II distance of approximately 80 feet to a point 
in the east right-of-way line of Rager Road and at a comer of said corporation line; 

thence northerly along the east right-of-way line of Rager Road and crossing a portion of said I acre tract
a distance ofapproximately 405 feet to the place of beginning;

containing approximately 0.75 acre of land, more or less. 

The above description was prepared by Kevin L. Baxter, Ohio Surveyor No. 7697, of C.F. Bird & R.J. Bull,
Inc., Consulting Engineers & Surveyors, Columbus, Ohio from best available Court House records, in
November, 2018. The above description was prepared for annexation purposes only and not intended for
transfer of real property. 

Kevin L. Baxter - Ohio Surveyor #7697

18-105/McCormick Annex Area

Exhibit A



ORDINANCE NO. 19-056

AN ORDINANCE TO ACCEPT THE APPLICATION OF MICHAEL L. AND CASSANDRA 
J. SULLIVAN FOR THE ANNEXATION TO THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER OF 
CERTAIN TERRITORY IN MADISON TOWNSHIP CONTAINING 0.62+/- ACRES AND 
BEING LOCATED AT 6229 BIXBY ROAD, TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP TO ZONE

0.62+/- ACRES TO LIMITED MANUFACTURING (LM), AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS, an Expedited Type II Petition for annexation of certain territory in Madison 
Township was duly filed by Michael L. and Cassandra J. Sullivan; and 

WHEREAS, the petition was duly considered by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Franklin County, Ohio, on July 9, 2019, wherein said Commissioners approved the annexation; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners certified a transcript of proceedings in 
connection with said annexation with the map and petition to the Clerk of the City of Canal 
Winchester who received the same on July 19, 2019; and  

WHEREAS, more than sixty days have elapsed from the date of filing of the transcript of 
such approval by the Board of Franklin County Commissions with the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined a Zoning Map Amendment to LM – Limited 
Manufacturing for approximately 0.62 +/- acres of land, including the aforementioned Sullivan 
parcel, is appropriate to match adjacent zoning and to facilitate economic development; and 

WHEREAS, Council has determined that acceptance of the annexation and 
implementation and approval of the Limited Manufacturing zoning is in the best interest of the 
residents of the City of Canal Winchester;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CANAL WINCHESTER, OHIO: 

SECTION 1.  That the proposed annexation, as applied for in the petition of Michael L. 
and Cassandra J. Sullivan, which petition was filed with the Board of County Commissioners of 
Franklin County, Ohio on June 4, 2019, and which petition prayed for the annexation to the City 
of Canal Winchester of certain territory adjacent thereto and hereinafter described, which petition 
was approved for annexation to the City of Canal Winchester by the Board of County 
Commissioners on July 9, 2019, be and hereby is accepted.  The territory annexed hereby is 
described in the legal description attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof as though 
fully rewritten herein.  The certified transcript of the proceedings for annexation with an accurate 
map of the territory, together with the petition for annexation and other papers relating to the 



proceedings thereto of the County Commissioners are all on file with the Clerk of the City of Canal 
Winchester and have been for more than 60 days. 

SECTION 2.  That the Clerk be, and hereby is, authorized and directed to make three copies 
of this Ordinance, to each of which shall be attached a copy of the transcript of proceedings of the 
Board of County Commissioners relating thereto and a certificate as to the correctness thereof. 
The Clerk shall then forthwith deliver one copy to the County Auditor, one copy to the County 
Recorder, and one copy to the Secretary of State, and shall file notice of this annexation with the 
Board of Elections within thirty days after it becomes effective. 

SECTION 3. That the Zoning Map is hereby amended to reflect that the zoning for 
approximately 0.62 +/- acres of land located at 6229 Bixby Road, which real property is described 
in the legal descriptions attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, be LM, 
Limited Manufacturing District. 

SECTION 4.  That this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure, 
necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety of the City of Canal 
Winchester, such emergency arising from the exigencies of commercial and industrial 
development of land within the City which provides for the economic and community welfare by 
providing the creation of jobs in the City; WHEREFORE, this ordinance shall take effect and be 
in force from and after its passage. 

DATE PASSED_____________________ ______________________________ 
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

ATTEST___________________________ ______________________________ 
               CLERK OF COUNCIL  MAYOR 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 
LEGAL COUNSEL 

I hereby certify that the ordinance as set forth above was published for a period of not 
less than fifteen (15) days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than 
three (3) public places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in 
the Canal Winchester Charter.  

______________________________ 
Clerk of Council 



ANNEXATION 

PLAT & DESCRIPTION 

ACCEPTABLE 
CORNELL R. ROBERTSON, P.E., P.S.. 

FRANKLIN COUNTY ENGINEER 

Date lj/l� /rg l 

May20,2019 

DESCRIPTION OF AN APPROXIMATE 0.61 ACRE 
SOUTH OF BIXBY ROAD, EAST OF RAGER ROAD, 

MADISON TOWNSIIlP, FRANKLIN co., omo 

Situated in the State of Ohio, County of Franklin, Township of Madison, in the northeast quarter of Section 
23, Township 11 North, Range 21 West, Congress Lands and being a portion of a 0.713,,acre tract of land 
convc)'ed to Michael L. & Cassandra J. Sullivan, oy deed of n:cord in Instrument No. 201310180177122. 
all records referenced to the Recorder's Office, Franklin County, Ohio, and bounded and described as 
follows: 

Beginning at a point at the intersection of the south right-of-way line Bixby Road (variable width) with the 
east line of said 0.713 acre tract, said point also being at a northwest corner of The City of Canal Winchester 
Corporation Limits, as approved by Ordinance No. __ and recorded in Instrument No. 

thence southerly along a westerly line of said corporation line, along a portion of the east line of said 0. 713 
acre tract and crossing a portion of an original 32 acre tract of land conveyed, as Parcel Ill, to Willis M. 
Alspach, Trustee (25% Interest) and Joan A. Alspach, Trustee (25'% Interest), by deed of record in 
Instrument No. 201208090115353 and David Benjamin Alspach (50% Interest), by deeds of record in 
Official Record 3195, Page C 17 an approximate distance of 199 feet to a point at the southeast comer of 
said 0, 713 acre tract and at a comer of said corporation line; 

thence westerly along a northerly line of said corporation line, along the south line of said 0.713 acre tract 
and crossing a portion of said original 32 acre tract a distance of approximately l 35 feet to a point at the 
southwest corner of said 0.713 acre tract and at a comer of said corporation line; 

thence northerly along an easterly line of said corporation, along a portion of the west line of said 0.713 
acre tract and crossing a portion of said original 32 acre tract a distance of approximately 199 feet to a point 
at the intersection of the south right-of-way line of Bixby Road with the west line of said 0. 713 acre tract 
and at a northeast comer of said corporation line; 

thence easterly crossing said 0.713 acre tract and along the south right-of-way line of Bixby Road a distance 
of approximately 135 feet to the place of beginning; 

containing approximately 0.62 acre of land, more or less. 

The above description was prepared by Kevin L. Baxter, Ohio Surveyor No. 7697, ofC.F. Bird & R.J. Bull, 
Inc., Consulting Engineers & Surveyors, Columbus, Ohio from best available Court House records, in 
November, 2018. The above description was prepared for annexation purposes only and not intended for

transfer of real property. 

18-1 OS/Sullivan AMcx Area

Exhibit A



ORDINANCE NO. 19-057

AN ORDINANCE TO ACCEPT THE APPLICATION OF DEAN JENKINS FOR THE 
ANNEXATION TO THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER OF CERTAIN TERRITORY IN 
MADISON TOWNSHIP CONTAINING 1.26+/- ACRES AND BEING LOCATED AT 6091 
BIXBY ROAD, TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP TO ZONE 1.26+/- ACRES TO LIMITED 

MANUFACTURING (LM), AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS, an Expedited Type II Petition for annexation of certain territory in Madison 
Township was duly filed by Dean Jenkins; and 

WHEREAS, the petition was duly considered by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Franklin County, Ohio, on July 9, 2019, wherein said Commissioners approved the annexation; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners certified a transcript of proceedings in 
connection with said annexation with the map and petition to the Clerk of the City of Canal 
Winchester who received the same on July 19, 2019; and  

WHEREAS, more than sixty days have elapsed from the date of filing of the transcript of 
such approval by the Board of Franklin County Commissions with the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined a Zoning Map Amendment to LM – Limited 
Manufacturing for approximately 1.26 +/- acres of land, including the aforementioned Jenkins 
parcel, is appropriate to match adjacent zoning and to facilitate economic development; and 

WHEREAS, Council has determined that acceptance of the annexation and 
implementation and approval of the Limited Manufacturing zoning is in the best interest of the 
residents of the City of Canal Winchester;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CANAL WINCHESTER, OHIO: 

SECTION 1.  That the proposed annexation, as applied for in the petition of Dean Jenkins, 
which petition was filed with the Board of County Commissioners of Franklin County, Ohio on 
June 4, 2019, and which petition prayed for the annexation to the City of Canal Winchester of 
certain territory adjacent thereto and hereinafter described, which petition was approved for 
annexation to the City of Canal Winchester by the Board of County Commissioners on July 9, 
2019, be and hereby is accepted.  The territory annexed hereby is described in the legal description 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof as though fully rewritten herein.  The certified 
transcript of the proceedings for annexation with an accurate map of the territory, together with 
the petition for annexation and other papers relating to the proceedings thereto of the County 



Commissioners are all on file with the Clerk of the City of Canal Winchester and have been for 
more than 60 days. 

SECTION 2.  That the Clerk be, and hereby is, authorized and directed to make three copies 
of this Ordinance, to each of which shall be attached a copy of the transcript of proceedings of the 
Board of County Commissioners relating thereto and a certificate as to the correctness thereof. 
The Clerk shall then forthwith deliver one copy to the County Auditor, one copy to the County 
Recorder, and one copy to the Secretary of State, and shall file notice of this annexation with the 
Board of Elections within thirty days after it becomes effective. 

SECTION 3. That the Zoning Map is hereby amended to reflect that the zoning for 
approximately 1.26 +/- acres of land located at 6091 Bixby Road, which real property is described 
in the legal descriptions attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, be LM, 
Limited Manufacturing District. 

SECTION 4.  That this Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure, 
necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety of the City of Canal 
Winchester, such emergency arising from the exigencies of commercial and industrial 
development of land within the City which provides for the economic and community welfare by 
providing the creation of jobs in the City; WHEREFORE, this ordinance shall take effect and be 
in force from and after its passage. 

DATE PASSED_____________________ ______________________________ 
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

ATTEST___________________________ ______________________________ 
               CLERK OF COUNCIL  MAYOR 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 
LEGAL COUNSEL 

I hereby certify that the ordinance as set forth above was published for a period of not 
less than fifteen (15) days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than 
three (3) public places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in 
the Canal Winchester Charter.  

______________________________ 
Clerk of Council 



·'

ANNEXATION 

PLAT & DESCR!PT101'1

ACCEPT ABLE! 
'CORNELL R ROBERTSON, U�,.�.&

FRANKLIN COUNTY .EWOlNPBI 

� 
Dace '5/2.9 !J<:t,

May20,2019 
DESCRIPTION OF AN APPROXIMATE 1.26 ACRES 
SOUTH OF BIXBY ROAD, EAST OF RAGER ROAD, 

MADISON TOWNSHIP, FRANKLIN CO., OHIO 

Situated in the State of Ohio, County offranklin, Township of Madison, in the nonheast quaner of Section 
23, Township 11 Nonh, Range 21 West, Congress Lands and being e ponio� of 11 1.35 acre tract of land 
conveyed to L. Dean Jenkins, by deed or record in Instrument No. 2012 I 0250 I 61 756, a II records referenced 
lo the Recorder's Office, Franklin County, Ohio, and bounded and described as follows: 
Beginning at a point at the intersection of the south right-of-way line Bixby Road (variable width) with the 
west line of said 1.35 acre tract, said point also being at a northeast comer of The City of Canal Winchester 
Corporation Limits, as approved by Ordinance No. ___ and recorded in Instrument No. 

lhence easterly crossing said 1.35 acre tract and along the south right-of-way line of Bixby Road a distance 
of approximately 135 feet to a point in the east line o said 1.35 acre tract, in the west line of a 0.780 acre 
tract of land conveyed, as Parcel 3-WD for Bixby Road roadway purposes, to Franklin County 
Commissioners, by deed of record in Instrument No. 201507090092985 and at a northwest comer of said 
corporation line; 

thence southerly along a portion of the east line of said 1.35 acre tract, along a portion of the west line of 
said 0.780 acre tract, crossing II ponion ofan original 32 acre tract of land conveyed, as Parcel Ill, to Willis 
M. Alspach, Trustee (25% Interest) 11nd Joan A. Alspach, Trustee (25% Interest), by deed of record In
Instrument No. 201208090115353 and David Benjamin Alspach (50% Interest), by deeds of record in
Official Record 3195, Page C 17 and along a westerly line of said corpora1ion line a distance of
approximately 406 feet to a point al the southeast comer of said 1.35 acre tract, at a northeast comer of a
7.65 acre tract or land conveyed, as Parcel IV, to Willis M. Alspach, Trustee (25% Interest) and Joan A.
Alspach, Trustee (25% Interest), by deed of record in Instrument No. 201208090115353 and David
Benjamin Alspach (SO¾ Interest), by deeds of record in Official Record 3195, Page C 17 and at a comer
of said corporation line;
thence westerly along the south line of satd 1.35 acre tract, crossing a portion of said original 32 acre tract, 
along a north line of said 7 ,65 acre tract and along a north line of said corporation line a distance of 
approximately 135 feet to a point at the southwest comer of said 1.35 acre tract, at a comer of said 7.65 
acre tract and at a comer of said corporation line; 
thence northerly along a portion of the west line of said I .35 acre tract, along a portion of an east line of 
said 7.65 acre tract and along an easterly line of said corporation line a distance of approKimately 406 feet 
to the place of beginning; 

containing approximately 1.26 acres of land, more or less. 
The above description was prepared by Kevin L. Baxter, Ohio Surveyor No. 7697, ofC.F. Bird & R.J. Bull, 
Inc., Consulting Engineers & Surveyors, Columbus, Ohio from best available Court House records, in 
November, 2018. The above description was prepared for annexation purposes only and not intended for 
transfer of real property. 

�"eEd 
Kevin L. Baxter~ Ohio Surveyor #7697 

I 8-1 OS/Jenkins Annex Area 

Exhibit A



[Type here]

ORDINANCE NO. 19-058

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROPRIATE A FEE SIMPLE ABSOLUTE INTEREST IN 
2.391 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, LOCATED AT WEST WATERLOO STREET, FOR 

THE PUBLIC PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.

WHEREAS, the City of Canal Winchester (the “City”) has determined it is necessary to construct a 
roadway improvement upon the 2.391-acre area (“the Property”) depicted on Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, Council adopted a resolution of intent to appropriate a fee simple absolute interest in the 
Property on September 16, 2019, and the City has caused notice of such resolution to be published in 
accordance with law; and

WHEREAS, the ambiguous state of title underlying the Property makes acquisition of the Property 
through negotiation impossible;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER, 
STATE OF OHIO:

Section 1. Council considers it necessary and declares its authorization to appropriate, for the appraised 
value of $300, for the public purpose of constructing roadway improvements to be open to the public without 
charge, a fee simple absolute interest in the Property described and depicted in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference.

Section 2. The Law Director is hereby authorized to file a petition for appropriation in the county Court of 
Common Pleas should it become necessary, and to utilize the quick-take procedures pursuant to R.C. 163.06.

Section 3.   This Council further hereby authorizes and directs the Mayor, the Law Director, the Director of 
Finance, the Clerk of Council, and other appropriate officers of the City to take any other actions as may be 
appropriate to implement this Ordinance, including the authority to reach a reasonable administrative resolution 
with the property owner(s) to acquire the property interests in an amount greater than the appraised value.  
Should the City reach a reasonable administrative resolution at an amount greater than the appraised value, no 
further legislation is required.  

Section 4. This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure, necessary for the immediate 
preservation of the public peace, health, safety, or welfare, such emergency being the necessity of obtaining fee 
simple absolute interest in the Property to advance the project; therefore, this Ordinance shall take effect and be 
in force immediately upon its passage.

DATE PASSED: _____________________ ___________________________
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST:___________________________ ___________________________
CLERK OF COUNCIL MAYOR

DATE APPROVED: __________

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

___________________________________
LAW DIRECTOR

0128850.0615530   4847-5542-3656v1





October 26, 2017 
containing 2.391 acres of land, more or less, and being subject to all highways, easements and restrictions 
ofrecord. Of said 2.391 acres, all are within W. Waterloo Street~ Relocated S.R. 674 Right-of-Way. 

The above description was prepared by Kevin L. Baxter, Ohio Surveyor No. 7697, ofC.F. Bird & R.J. Bull, 
Inc., Consulting Engineers & Surveyors, Columbus, Ohio from an actual field survey, performed under his 
supervision, in October, 2017. 3/4" I.D. iron pipe set are 30" in length with a plastic cap stamped "BIRD 
& BULL, INC.". Basis of bearings is the centerline of W. Waterloo Street~ Relocated S.R. 674, being S 
85° 36; 35" W, derived from VRS observations referencing monument, PID designation of AJ7184 and 
CORS_ID of COLB, Ohio South Zone, NAD 83 (2011 Adj.), and all other bearings are based upon this 
meridian. 

�'-t5d 
Kevin L. Baxter~ Ohio Surveyor #7697 

10/cal,? 
,_,'411l•W-.l� ...... l 

,,,.•·······� 'c. 0 F 
o··•••,,, 

,,• "''r- ........... ft/, '· 
ff 0 .. -······

··· ····• ....... 0 \ ...
! / KEVIN \ \ 

� } L. \ \
\ * \ BAXTER J. * i
\ \'9�$-7697 �/ 1 

\, ··,,:��-/ / 
-���/-

Page 2 of2 
17-122/Waterloo-Wood













































































































































































































ORDINANCE NO. 19-058

AN ORDINANCE TO WAIVE COMPETITIVE BIDDING FOR PARK AMENITIES 
PORTION OF THE WESTCHESTER PARK IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT AND TO 

AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR AND FINANCE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT WITH LANDSCAPE STRUTURES, INC. 

AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, the Westchester Park Improvements Project consists of two distinct portions, 
that being site work and park amenities; and, 

WHEREAS, Landscape Structures, Inc. has provided proposals to furnish and install park 
amenities as part of the Westchester Park Improvements Project, the majority of which are 
provided through the Ohio State Bid Contract; and,

WHEREAS, in order for a more efficient delivery of the park project, it is necessary to 
waive competitive bidding for the purchase and installation of the park amenities portion 
through Landscape Structures, Inc.; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 8.02(C) of the Charter provides that “[b]y a vote of no less than five 
members, Council may waive the competitive bidding requirement if Council determines that…a 
waiver of the competitive bidding requirement is in the best interest of the City;”

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANAL 
WINCHESTER, STATE OF OHIO:  

Section 1. That pursuant to section 8.02(C) of the Charter, Council hereby waives 
competitive bidding for the park amenities portion of the Westchester Park Improvements 
Project and authorizes the Mayor and Finance Director to enter into agreements with Landscape 
Structures, Inc. in the amount of approximately $170,000.

Section 2. That this ordinance be declared an emergency measure, necessary for the 
preservation of public health, safety, and welfare, such an emergency arising from the need to 
meet grant and weather-dependent construction schedule provisions; wherefore, this ordinance 
shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage.



DATE PASSED 
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST
    CLERK OF COUNCIL MAYOR

DATE APPROVED

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

LEGAL COUNSEL

I hereby certify that the ordinance as set forth above was published for a period of not 
less than fifteen days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than 
three (3) public places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in 
the Canal Winchester Charter.

Clerk of Council







Mayors Report
________________________________________________________________  _____________________________
October 7, 2019                       Michael Ebert, Mayor

Old Inventory:
The city has over 200 old unusable street sign’s, we will be donating them to the Canal Winchester 
Area Historical Society to sell as a fundraiser to help with renovations of the Historical Complex.

Christmas in the Village:
This event is gaining more and more popularity each year.  This year’s planning is well under way 
with some new attractions and the vehicle Light Parade followed by Santa.  Christmas in the Village 
will take place on December 6th & 7th and it is always the first Friday & Saturday of December. 

Historical Society Gala:   
Just a reminder that the Historic al Society Gala will be held on October 18th at the Historical 
Complex on H. High Street. Tickets are available by going to their CWAHS website.  Limited 
number of tickets are available and more than 50% have been sold.



 
 

COUNCIL UPDATE 
________________________________________________________________  _____________________________ 

October 3, 2019                            Department of Public Service 
                   Matthew C.  Peoples, Director 

 

Project Status:      

Westchester Park Improvements: ODNR has approve the project plans as part of the Nature 
Works Grant process and we are working to get the project started. As part of that we are 
presenting legislation at the October 7th meetings to waive competitive bidding on the park 
amenities portion of the project and award to Landscape Structures.  The site work is being done 
as a change order on the 2019 Street CIP through Columbus Asphalt Paving.   

Additionally, the fitness stations have been delivered and we are laying out the sites the week of 
October 7th.  We will then schedule installation. 

Football for Food:  Public Service crews assisted CW Human Services with their Football for Food 
event on September 25th and 27th by helping box and load donated food from the elementary 
and middle schools, as well as unloading at the food pantry.  This is a fun event for our crews that 
we have been doing for 10 years. 

High St. RR X-ing: The Railroad has approved the cost sharing agreement and we will be 
scheduling the work soon.  

SWACO Consortium Meeting:  I attended a second Consortium II meeting to continue to get 
more information regarding the program.  

WRF Generator Project:  We have submitted the generator replacement project to an Ohio EPA 
low interest loan program that will provide up to $50,000 in principal forgiveness. 

Storm Sewer Replacement: Franklin County Drainage Engineers are working the project into the 
contractor’s schedule and we expect to hear something soon. 

McGill Park: ODNR approved the Land and Water Conservation Fund grant and are waiting to 
have $500,000 grant finalized at the federal level.  Additionally, we are still awaiting word from 
ODNR on the $450,000 Clean Ohio Trail Fund grant. 

Transportation Thoroughfare Plan: EMH&T is reviewing MORPC’s proposal for their portion of 
the project and are working to finalize their proposal.  The preliminary costs are coming in higher 
than expected and we are working on fine tune project expectations. 

Trail Lighting:  Bill Sims and I met with South Central Power to get quotes on installing pole 
lighting along the Groveport bike path from Hanners Park west to the end of the trail. 

Gender Road Paving: ODOT District 6 is wrapping up their portion of the project and sending to 
ODOT Central Office for completion.    



   

   

Gender Rd. Phase V:  OPWC application has been submitted and we expect to hear results 
around the first of December. 

Lithopolis Wastewater Agreement: We continue to work with Mayor Taylor to possibly extend 
the contract early.   

Gender Rd. Signal Synchronization Project: ODOT has the consultant on board and the data 
collection portion is scheduled to start in soon.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

   

COUNCIL UPDATE  
___________________________________________________________  __________________________________ 

October 3, 2019                             Division of Urban Forestry 
                         Dick Miller, Urban Forester 

 

Project Status:      

Tree Removals: Twelve (12) standing dead trees have been marked by the city that are within 
striking distance of the food pantry. The forester recommends these trees be removed by the 
end of the year.    

Path Maintenance: Clearing of woody debris continues along the bike path west of Gender Rd. 
 

Tire Sweep: Our 12th year of the annual tire sweep will take place along the Walnut Creek October 
5th. Sweep area this year is the Elementary schools to Walnut Woods Metro Park.  All tires are 
transported to the shredding facility by Metro Parks. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

   

COUNCIL UPDATE  
____________________________________________________________________ _________________________ 

October 3, 2019                                      Division of Water Reclamation 
                      Steve Smith, Superintendent 

 
Project Status:        

South Gender Pump Station: Another new, less clog-prone pump has been installed and put into 
service.     

North Gender Pump Station: A new pump has been installed.  

Control Replacement: bids are being solicited for replacement of the aging controls at the Rt. 33 
lift station. 

Diffuser Replacement: The failing process tanks diffusers are being replaced beginning with tank 
1. Though the diffuser supplier is paying for the parts and labor of the replacement, the 
replacement causes process disruptions that can be difficult to navigate. Replacement of the 
diffusers in tank 2 is scheduled for the last week of October if all goes as planned. 

Groveport Sewer Repair: The broken sewer line on Groveport Rd. has been repaired. The cause 
of the damage was found to be underground boring of a 6” electrical conduit which sheared a 
lateral in half.   

Safety:  

• A Safety meeting was held addressing dump truck and plow safety 

• The response to the BWC violations has delivered and they have acknowledged reception 
but have not returned comment.    

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

   

COUNCIL UPDATE  
_______________________________________________________________  ______________________________ 

October 3, 2019                                            Division of Streets, Lands and Buildings 
                       Shawn Starcher, Manager 

 

Project Status:      

Mowing:  Crews continue to stay busy with parks and roadside mowing, which we are expecting 
to soon wrap up for the year. 
 
Leaf Pickup: Leaf removal season is scheduled from October 7th to December 13th and crews are 
prepping our leaf vacs and trucks in preparation. 
 
Covered Bridge: Crews power washed and cleaned the inside of the Covered Bridge as routine 
maintenance and in preparation for two upcoming rentals, including a wedding. 
 
Storm Repairs:  City Crews have begun making repairs to storm inlets that needed minor repairs 
 
New Employees:  Our newest employee, Travis Webb, will begin work October 14th. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



   

   

COUNCIL UPDATE  
____________________________________________________________________ _________________________ 

October 3, 2019                                         Division of Information Technology 
                 Rick Brown, Coordinator 
 
Project Status:      

Updates: Working to update desktop computers with the Microsoft 1903 updates. This is a 
critical update from Microsoft. 
 
Access Management:  Replaced gate keypads at 400 Ashbrook 
 
SCADA:  Worked with the contractor to upgrade SCADA software for Water A/B Switches 
 
Security Cameras:  Working with South Central Power on security camera additions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



   

   

COUNCIL UPDATE  
____________________________________________________________________ _________________________ 

October 3, 2019                                                                  Division of Water 
                 Joe Taylor, Superintendent 
 
Project Status:      

Plant Production:  

• We pumped 28.575 Million in August at an average of .922 MGD per day which is 46% of 
capacity. Maximum daily flow was 1.166 MGD and average hardness was 117 mg/l.  
There were no water complaints for this month. 

• A/B switches- Premier Electric has completed the installation, programming is complete 
and we started operation on October 2nd. 

  
Distribution:   

• AMI Metering System installs are ongoing. We have around 1809 units installed with 
approximately 1491 remaining (55 % completed). 

• Hydrant flushing will be completed the week of 10/1/19 

• The North Gender tower was washed out and inspected October 1st and is now back in 
service. 

• We are currently preparing for fall valve bolt replacements. 
 
   

 
 



COUNCIL UPDATE
____________________________________________________________________________________________

October 4, 2019                                                                        Construction Services Department
                       Bill Sims, Administrator

Capital Improvement Projects

High St. RR Crossing Improvement:   Agreement for construction being finalized with RR.   Expect to enter 
construction contract in next two weeks.

Westchester Park Improvements:  Awaiting final grant approval before entering into construction contacts.

Gender Rd. Phase 5:  OPWC application submitted.

Private Development Projects

18-26 W.Waterloo Mixed Use Bldg.:  Site work has begun. Water and sewer taps to be made in October.

Winchester Ridge Apartments Phase 4: Earthwork and sanitary sewer underway.

Canal Cove Sec. 6 & 7:  Roadway paved.  Building permits being issued.

Crossroads Church: Bigerton Bend paved.  Restoration underway.   Gender Rd. right turn lane yet to be 
constructed.

Villages At Westchester Section 13-2:   Phase 2 to begin construction early October.

NIFCO on Robinett Way:  Project complete.

Hampton Inn:  .  Site work complete for time being.  Building underway.

Turning Stone:  Project substantially complete, Building permits issued.

Mill Tech:  Site work started.  Water and sewer taps made.

Winchester Veterinary Clinic:  Construction dormant due to design issues. Revised plans have been 
approved by the Building Dept.

Other

MCI:  Four permit plans approved.  Awaiting fees and bonds from MCI.

Columbia Gas – Gas mains approved for installation in VAW 13-1, Canal Cove 6&7,  & Turning Stone.

Misc.
- R/W dedications from our parcels to R/W at Gender & Groveport.
- Easement for ACD. Net on Groveport Rd. 



COUNCIL UPDATE
__________________________________________________________________________________________

October 2, 2019                 Development Department

               Lucas Haire, Director

Development Report

 Planning and Zoning Commission will review plans for a site development plan 
application for two new industrial warehouse buildings on Bixby Road at their October 
meeting. The two proposed buildings total 871,200 square feet.

 Friendship Kitchen will also return to Planning and Zoning Commission with a revised 
plan in regards to their request for a conditional use to allow a convenience market at the 
Southeast corner of Gender Road and Trillium Ave.

 Nifco completed their new 175,000 square feet building in Canal Pointe and they are 
currently moving their operations into the facility from leased space in Groveport.

 Site work recently began at 18 – 26 West Waterloo Street. This area will no loner permit 
public parking and notices were distributed to those who parked within the lot and the lot 
was signed for no parking three days prior to its closure.

 Work also began on September 30th to complete renovations on the façade of 5 - 7 S. High 
Street. This is the last outstanding project that is being funded by the CWICC’s façade 
improvement grant.


	A. Call To Order
	B. Pledge of Allegiance - Bennett
	C. Roll Call
	D. Approval of Minutes
	 9-16-19 Work Session Minutes
	Minutes

	 9-16-19 Council Minutes
	Minutes

	 9-30-19 Committee of the Whole Minutes
	9.30 Committee of the Whole

	 9-30-19 Public Meeting Minutes
	Minutes


	E. Communications & Petitions
	 Introduction of Madison Township Fire Chief
	Madison Township Fire Report

	 Goodwill Workforce Development
	letter


	F. Public Comments
	G. RESOLUTIONS
	 A Resolution Endorsing The Passage Of The 2019 Fra
	resolution

	 A Resolution To Establish the Route 33 North Commu
	resolution
	Exhibit

	 A Resolution In Support Of Stormwater Awareness We
	resolution


	H. ORDINANCES
	 Tabled
	 An Ordinance To Amend Section 331.44 Of The Codifi
	Ordinance


	 Third Reading
	 Second Reading
	 An Ordinance To Authorize The Mayor And Finance Di
	Ordinance


	 First Reading
	 An Ordinance To Accept The Application of Teresa L
	Ordinance
	Exhibit

	 An Ordinance To Accept The Application Of Michael
	Ordinance
	Exhibit

	 An Ordinance To Accept The Application Of Dean Jen
	Ordinance
	Exhibit

	 An Ordinance To Appropriate A Fee Simple Absolute
	Ordinance
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B

	 An Ordinance To Waive Competitive Bidding For Park
	ordinance
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B


	I. Reports
	 Mayor's Report
	Report

	 Fairfield County Sheriff
	 Law Director
	 Finance Director
	 Public Service Director
	Project Update
	Construction Services Update

	 Development Director
	Report


	J. Council Reports
	 Informal Town Hall Special Meeting - Tuesday, Octo
	 Work Session/Council - Monday, October 21, 2019 at
	 Work Session/Council - Monday, November 4, 2019 at
	 CW Human Services - Mr. Lynch
	 CWICC - Mr. Clark
	 CWJRD - Mr. Bennett/Mrs. Amos
	 Destination: Canal Winchester - Mr. Walker

	K. Old/New Business
	L. Adjourn to Executive Session (if necessary)
	M. Adjournment



